
 
 
To: Members of the  

GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Tony Owen (Chairman) 
Councillor Russell Mellor (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillors Nicholas Bennett J.P., John Canvin, Roger Charsley, 
Roxhannah Fawthrop, John Getgood, Julian Grainger, Will Harmer,  
Gordon Norrie, Ian F. Payne, Charles Rideout, Diane Smith,  
Tim Stevens J.P. and Pauline Tunnicliffe 

 
 A meeting of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee will be held at Bromley 

Civic Centre on TUESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2012 AT 7.00 PM  
 
 MARK BOWEN 

Director of Resources 
 

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from 
 www.bromley.gov.uk/meetings  

 
A G E N D A 

 

1  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

2  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

3  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING  

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to this Committee must be 
received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting.  Therefore please 
ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 5pm on 
Wednesday 17th October 2012. 
  

4  
  

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26TH SEPTEMBER 
2012 (EXCLUDING EXEMPT ITEMS) AND MATTERS ARISING  
(Pages 3 - 10) 

5  
  

LOCALISED PAY AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE  
(Pages 11 - 50) 
 

6  REPORT OF THE CONSTITUTION IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP  
(Pages 51 - 68) 

 The Working Group’s report is to be considered by this Committee and by the 
Executive on 24th October before being referred to full Council on 12th November 2012 
for decision.    

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Graham Walton 

   graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 0208 461 7743   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 15 October 2012 



 
 

 

7  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000  

 The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the item of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.  
 

  

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description 

8  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
HELD ON 26TH SEPTEMBER 2012  
(Pages 69 - 70) 

Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding 
that information)  

 
  



1 
 

GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 26 September 2012 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Tony Owen (Chairman)    

 

Councillors Nicholas Bennett J.P., Roger Charsley, 
Roxhannah Fawthrop, John Getgood, Julian Grainger, 
Gordon Norrie, Charles Rideout and Diane Smith 
 

 

 
Also Present: 

 
Councillor Graham Arthur, Councillor Peter Fookes and 
Councillor William Huntington-Thresher 
 

 
32   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Will Harmer, Russell 
Mellor and Tim Stevens J.P. 
 
33   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
34   CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

11TH JULY 2012 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 11th July 2012 be 
confirmed. 
 
35   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING 

THE MEETING 
 

No questions had been received. 
 
36   FEEDBACK ON THE GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY 

ELECTIONS MAY  2012 
Report RES12140 

 
The Committee received a report on issues arising from the Greater London 
Authority (GLA) elections on 3rd May 2012. In addition, some comments from 
Councillor Tim Stevens relating to the Crofton Halls and Tubbenden Primary 
School polling stations in his ward were tabled.    
 
The report contained, at appendix 2, the Electoral Commission’s guidance on 
the conduct of tellers. The Committee considered the role of tellers and the 
issues that had been raised with regard to some polling stations. A small 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
26 September 2012 
 

2 

number of complaints had been received about voters feeling intimidated by 
tellers, and there had been some confusion about the secure disposal of 
polling cards.  Members commented that the purpose of tellers was to 
increase the number of people voting and complained that their role was not 
understood by the electorate or, in some cases, the electoral staff. There were 
reports of polling staff being hostile to tellers, for example not allowing elderly 
tellers to use toilet facilities within a polling station, and polling station staff 
preventing tellers from obtaining polling cards. Councillor Julian Grainger 
raised concerns about the behaviour of poll clerking teams in his ward, 
alleging that there appeared to be displays of political bias and frequent 
reports from tellers of poll clerks being hostile to them at one polling station 
(and, in the past, in two.) He queried whether choosing polling station staff on 
the basis that they lived nearby, while understandable for practical reasons, 
could mean that staff had an interest in the outcome of the election where 
they were serving. 
 
Members proposed that a simple and prominent notice should be put up at 
each station explaining the role of tellers. The Returning Officer confirmed that 
this could be done, but asserted that the notice would have to explain that 
tellers had no legal status within the electoral process.  He also confirmed that 
polling station staff would be given specific training on the role of tellers and 
that these issues would be raised in the normal discussions with agents.  
 
A number of other matters were raised by members of the Committee: 
 

• Councillor Nicholas Bennett suggested that a prominent notice should 
be put up at Pickhurst Infant and Junior Schools, where there were 
polling stations serving different wards in the two schools on the same 
site.  

 

• Councillor Peter Fookes queried when the decision had been taken to 
stop making return visits to collect registration forms. He was informed 
that this decision had been made as part of the budget savings the 
previous year.  

 

• Councillor Charles Rideout drew attention to the need to move polling 
stations in his ward away from Castlecombe Primary School to the 
Mottingham Community Centre. 

 
The Chairman clarified that the delays in delivering postal vote applications 
referred to in the report had been due to his party, and apologised for this. He 
added that his party Agent had remarked on how helpful Carol Ling, the 
Council’s Electoral Services Manager, had been throughout the process, and 
this was endorsed by the Committee. 
 
The Chief Executive and Returning Officer undertook to consider the 
comments made by the Committee.  
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and the Returning 
Officer be requested to consider the Committee’s comments. 

Page 4



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
26 September 2012 

 

3 
 

 
37   ESSENTIAL CAR USER ALLOWANCE CRITERIA 

Report HHR12005 
 
A review had been undertaken, including consultation with staff and their 
representatives, to ensure that the Council’s Essential Car User (ECU) criteria 
remained fit for purpose. An “essential car user” (ECU) was any member of 
staff whose duties were such that it was essential for them to have a car at 
their disposal whenever required by the Council. They were paid a lump sum 
allowance each year and could claim payments for business mileage. Staff for 
whom car use was desirable were designated as casual car users (CCU).   
 
Staff had been consulted on the proposed changes and their responses were 
set out in appendix 1 to the report. The proposals would result in a small 
budget saving. It was confirmed that the introduction of charges for staff car 
parking was a separate issue.  
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) The comments received from staff and their representatives on the 
proposed changes to the ECU criteria and the response of the Assistant 
Chief Executive (HR) be noted. 
 
(2) The revised criteria set out in paragraph 3.7 be adopted for 
implementation with effect from 1st November 2012.  
 
38   TEACHER APPRAISAL AND CAPABILITY ARRANGEMENTS 

Report ED12037 
 
Revised arrangements for managing teacher performance had come into 
force in September 2012. The Committee considered a report which set out 
the changes and proposed amendments to the Council policies and 
procedures already in place. The proposals had been considered and 
supported by the Education Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee on 
11th September 2012.   
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) The comments of the Education PDS Committee on 11th September 
be noted. 
 
(2) The model policy be adopted by all Community and Voluntary 
Controlled schools and in respect of centrally based teaching staff 
employed by the local authority. 
 
(3) A minor change to the current Capability Procedure be agreed 
enabling the informal capability process to be dealt with as part of the 
appraisal process, as set out in paragraphs 3.6 and 3.8 of the report. 
 
 

Page 5



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
26 September 2012 
 

4 

39   ANALYSIS OF STAFF LEAVERS 
 

Following a request from Members at the Executive and Resources PDS 
Committee on 14th June 2012, the Committee received a report summarising 
information about staff leaving the Council, including their reasons for leaving 
and their destinations. The Chairman remarked that the views of staff leaving 
the Council were always particularly useful in pinpointing problems that 
needed to be addressed to improve the organisation, but Members were 
disappointed that the return rate for the exit questionnaire was not higher.  
 
All staff were encouraged to use the appraisal process to raise concerns with 
their managers (and more senior staff above them if necessary) so that any 
issues could be dealt with at an early stage. 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and referred to the 
Improvement and Efficiency Sub-Committee.  
 
40   AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011/12 

Report RES12154 
 
The Committee received the Council’s 2011/12 statutory accounts for 
approval in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011. The report also covered the conclusions and 
significant issues arising from the work carried out in relation to the audit of 
the 2011/12 accounts. Ms Janet Dawson of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
(PwC) attended the meeting.    
 
The Committee considered the figures relating to exit packages in the Notes 
to the Core Financial Statements, and sought clarification of whether these 
settlements had been approved by Members. The Chief Executive confirmed 
that, under executive delegation, these settlements had been agreed by him 
in consultation with relevant Executive Members and that, in many cases, the 
related issues had been reported to the Executive, albeit with estimated 
figures. The figures included a number of components, including redundancy, 
pay in lieu of notice and the cost of pension entitlements. Members agreed 
that further detail be examined in part 2 by the Audit Sub-Committee.   
 
The Chairman noted the comments from PwC in the section of their report on 
“Significant audit and accounting matters” relating to assets held for sale that 
the Council should ensure that it continued to monitor progress with the sale 
of these assets and that they genuinely remained assets that were held for 
sale. It was agreed that this should be referred to the relevant Policy 
Development and Scrutiny Committee (Executive and Resources PDS 
Committee).     
 
A Member questioned whether a section on value for money was included in 
the auditors’ report. Ms Dawson confirmed that they were required to consider 
whether the council had in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources but with a lighter touch 
approach than under the previous Use of Resources assessment.   

Page 6



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
26 September 2012 

 

5 
 

 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) The Council’s statutory accounts for 2011/12 be approved. 
 
(2) In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011, following approval, the Chairman of this 
Committee shall sign and date the statutory statements on page 1 as a 
formal record of the Committee’s approval. 
 
(3) The external auditor’s report be noted. 
 
(4) Chairman of this Committee be authorised to sign the letter of 
representation for 2011/12 on behalf of the Council. 
 
(5) The Annual Governance Statement which accompanies the statutory 
statement of accounts be approved. 
 
(6) The exit packages summarised in the Notes to the Core Accounts be 
considered as a confidential item by the Audit Sub-Committee.   
 
(7) The comments regarding Assets held for sale (page 2 of the PwC 
report) be referred to the Executive and Resources PDS Committee.  
 
41   REVISED STATEMENT OF GAMBLING LICENSING POLICY 

FOR 2013 - 2016 - PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
Report ES13132 

 
The Council was required to review its gambling licensing policy at least every 
three years. The next three year period was between 7th January 2013 and 6th 
January 2016, and a draft policy had been published for public consultation 
between 13th August and 10th September 2012. 
 
The Committee noted the comments received during the consultation period 
and recommended that full Council approve the proposed 2013-16 policy, 
subject to a minor correction in Part B, General Principles, to delete the word 
“unmet” in the final sentence.  
 
RESOLVED that the progress of the public consultation be noted and 
the agreed version of the policy, with the deletion of the word “unmet,” 
be forwarded to full Council on 12th November 2012 for formal adoption.  
 
42   REVISED STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 2011-2016 - 

RESULTS OF PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
Report ES12131 

 
At its meeting on 11th July 2012 the Committee had approved a draft revised 
statement of licensing policy for public consultation following changes to the 
Licensing Act 2003 introduced by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 
Act 2011. Public consultation had been carried out between 13th August and 

Page 7



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
26 September 2012 
 

6 

10th September 2012 – the three responses received were set out in the 
report. 
 
The Committee noted the comments received during the consultation period 
and recommended that full Council adopt the proposed revised policy. 
  
RESOLVED that the responses received from the public consultation 
process be noted and the agreed version of the policy be referred to full 
Council on 12th November 2012 for formal adoption. 
 
43   UPDATE ON APPEALS - LICENSING ACT 2003 

Report ES12133 
 
The Committee received a report updating them about the outcome of recent 
appeals to the Magistrates Court against the decisions of the Licensing Sub-
Committee. Three appeals had successfully been defended by the Council 
concerning the Beckenham Convenience Store, 268 high Street, Beckenham, 
the Bridge Bar (formerly Langtry’s), 2-8 High Street, Beckenham and the 
Beech Tree, Wellington Road, Orpington. Two further appeals were awaiting 
determination by the Court – these related to “Your Local” 75 High Street, 
Bromley and TR Supermarket, Edgehill Road, Chislehurst. 
 
Councillor Nicholas Bennett thanked the officers for doing a very professional 
job with regard to the Beech Tree, but he questioned whether the Council was 
claiming its full costs effectively. The Director of Resources’ representative 
agreed to look into this and report to Members of the Committee.   
 
RESOLVED that the success in defending three appeals, and the fact 
that a further two appeals are awaiting determination, be noted.  
 
44   APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 

Report RES12163 
 
The Committee was asked to consider appointments for the Keston Village 
Hall Trust, which fell due on 10th December 2012. The Committee was also 
reminded that appointments to the Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust and the 
Diocese of Rochester Board of Education remained unfilled from recent 
meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) Mr M Baker, Mr P Friend and Mr Peter Luckens be appointed as 
nominative trustees to the Keston Village Hall Trust for the four year 
term of office from 10th December 2012. 
 
(2) The appointments to the Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Council of 
Governors for the remainder of the three year period ending in May 2015 
and the Diocese of Rochester Board of Education for the remainder of 
the three year period expiring on 31st December 2014 be deferred for 
further consideration. 

Page 8



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
26 September 2012 

 

7 
 

 
 
45   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT 2000 
 

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 

The following summaries 
refer to matters 

involving exempt information  
 
 
46   AFFINITY SUTTON PENSION ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The Committee considered an approach from Affinity Sutton concerning the 
Council’s Pension Fund, and agreed to refer the matter to the Pensions 
Investment Sub-Committee.  
 
The Committee also considered a suggestion that paper copies of agendas 
should not be provided as a matter of course at Committee meetings, 
following the practice of the Education PDS Committee.    
 
 
The Meeting ended at 8.08 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is left intentionally blank



Report No. HHR12006 PART ONE   
 

 

   

Decision Maker: General Purposes & Licensing Committee 

Date:  23 October 2012 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non Executive  Non-Key  

Title: LOCALISED PAY AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

Contact Officer: Charles Obazuaye, Assistant Chief Executive (HR) 
Tel: (020) 8313 4355    E-mail:  charles.obazuaye@bromley.gov.uk 
Sue Sydney, Head of HR Operational Services 
Tel:  (020) 8313 4359   E-mail:  sue.sydney@bromley.gov.uk 
Barbara Plaw, HR Manager (Pay and Benefits) 
Tel: (020) 8313 4993    E-mail:  barbara.plaw@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Charles Obazuaye, Assistant Chief Executive (HR) 

Ward: Borough wide 

 
1. Reason for report 

This report details the outcome of consultation on the Council’s localised pay proposals for Members’ 
consideration.  

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 The General Purposes and Licensing Committee is asked to: 

2.1.1  Note and consider the issues set out in this report: and 

2.1.2   Recommend the proposal to Full Council for approval, or 

2.1.3 Decide whether to make any changes to the Council’s proposals for localised pay to be 
recommended to full Council. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



Corporate Policy 

 

1. Policy Status: New Policy  
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Funding considerations related to any consolidated increase in staff salaries 
or one-off consolidated rewards will be aligned with and considered as part of the Council’s 
normal budget setting processes. 

2. Ongoing costs: As above  

3. Budget head/performance centre:  Council-wide staffing budgets 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £75m (excluding schools delegated budgets)   
 

5. Source of funding:  Existing and future Revenue Budget  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):    The proposals affect all 3,711 employees of the 
Council including 1,339 staff in Community and Voluntary Controlled schools. These figures 
exclude teachers whose pay and conditions of service are currently governed by statute and 
who are therefore outside the scope of this report. 

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   The Officer Steering Group includes 
senior managers from service departments, and in addition to HR staff the project also relies on 
the specialist input of a number of other staff across the Council including financial, legal and 
payroll services.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: 
 

2. Call-in: As this is a non-executive decision call in is not applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):   All staff covered by the 
proposals set out in this report are involved directly or indirectly in providing a range of front-line 
services. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 

Page 12



3. COMMENTARY 

Background 
 

3.1 In 2010 the Council and the Trade Unions concluded the Single Status Agreement. This meant 
that through local negotiation and agreement the Council introduced a pay and grading 
structure specific to Bromley known as the “BR grades”. The Agreement also delivered 
significant local changes to many other terms and conditions of NJC staff, thereby ensuring that 
any enhancements to basic salary are offered only when there is evidence of a compelling 
business need to do so to deliver services.  

 
3.2 There are however a few remaining core terms and conditions of NJC and Soulbury staff which 

are still determined through collective bargaining at national (NJC) or regional (GLPC) level: 
 

Ø  Annual pay award 
Ø  Sick leave and sick pay 
Ø  Maternity and Adoption leave and pay 
Ø  Car Mileage rates 
Ø  Sleep-in allowance 
Ø  Industrial Injury Allowance 
 

3.3 Most significantly, the lack of local control over the annual pay review for NJC and Soulbury 
staff means that Council is not able to align decisions about pay with consideration of other 
local cost pressures, as part of the overall budget setting process.  The remaining NJC and 
GLPC frameworks also restrict the extent to which the Council is able to align its reward 
structures with staff and organisational performance. On 29 May 2012 Members of this 
Committee therefore authorised the Assistant Chief Executive (HR) to progress formal 
consultation on localised pay proposals to bring the remainder of these terms and conditions 
under the Council’s control.  

 
3.4 Key drivers behind the proposals include the fact that local control and accountability will result 

in there being greater emphasis on local circumstances in the pay review process. This in turn 
should improve the Council’s ability to offer a reward package which enables the Council to 
recruit and retain the right quality staff through challenging and changing times.  A greater 
alignment between reward and staff performance is also supportive of the Council’s 
performance management culture, and consistent with the Council’s HR Strategy. 

 
3.5 The consultation exercise has been undertaken on the basis of the proposals set out in the 

report attached at Appendix 1. The proposals include the introduction of a localised pay review 
process and merited local pay arrangements for all staff. These are consistent with the 
Council’s performance management culture and based on: 

 

• a non-consolidated reward scheme for exceptional performers; and 

• withholding pay increases from poor performers 
 

3.6 The Council will need to withdraw from the national and regional bargaining frameworks, and  
secure changes to existing contracts of employment to achieve these changes. 
 

3.7 Under the proposal the Council will set a single pay review process for all its workforce,     
except teachers. Currently there are different pay review processes for different employee 
groupings resulting in different annual pay rates being set at different times creating cultural 
and budget management challenges for the organisation. The single pay review process will 
cover the following staff namely:  

  

Page 13



• 3,234 NJC staff (“Green Book”) and 19 Soulbury staff who are currently employed on a 
combination of national and local terms and conditions; and 

• 196 management grade officers and 262 lecturers at the Bromley Adult Education College 
who are already employed on local (Bromley) terms and conditions of employment. 

 
3.8 The proposals involve changes of contractual and a non contractual nature. The proposed  

contractual changes are as follows: 
 
3.8.1 The introduction of a single annual pay review mechanism to apply to all staff to replace: 
 

• NJC and GLPC collective bargaining for “Green Book” and Soulbury staff; 

• The Inbucon recommendation and performance related pay arrangements for staff on the 
Bromley management grades; 

• The Local Joint Negotiating Committee for Lecturers in Bromley Adult Education. 
 
3.8.2 Withholding general pay increases from underperforming staff until a sustained satisfactory  

level of performance is achieved. 
 
3.8.3 With the exception of the pay arrangements set out above, existing terms and conditions 

would be maintained unchanged (“as is”) at the date of implementation and any future 
changes to the remaining terms and conditions of service in paragraph 3.2 except pay will be 
the subject of local negotiation and determination (other terms and conditions are already 
localised through the Single Status Agreement). 

 
3.8.4 The introduction of Professional/Technical grades which mirror management grades 5 and 6  

for highly specialised/technical posts which do not carry management responsibilities. 
 

3.9 The non contractual element involves the introduction of a scheme of discretionary non-
consolidated rewards for Exceptional Performance. 

 
  Consultation process and responses 
 
3.10 During the period of consultation there have been over 50 staff meetings attended by more 

than 900 staff where the proposals have been presented and discussed in detail and staff 
comments noted.  

 
3.11 There have also been a number of meetings with trade union representatives with a view to 

achieving the changes by negotiation and agreement, and the proposals have been discussed 
with the Staff Side Secretary and at the corporate departmental and trade union forum. From 
the outset however trade union representatives made it clear that they are totally opposed to 
the proposals, and have no mandate locally or regionally to enter into any local agreement 
which includes Bromley’s withdrawal from national and regional collective pay bargaining.  

 
3.12 In addition the proposals have been presented to a number of meetings involving Head 

Teachers and Chairmen of Governors in schools before and after the summer break. Although 
it did not prove possible to fully engage with schools’ staff until after the start of the Autumn 
term, all staff were written to individually and 6 meetings were held across the Borough to 
which schools staff were invited to attend. 

 
3.13 A dedicated mailbox was set up and published for consultation purposes, and written 

responses have so far been received from or on behalf of 103 staff using this method. 
 
3.14 A summary of the main points raised by staff, trade unions and departmental representatives 

during the consultation process is set out below based on comments from written responses 
received, as well as verbally from staff, trade union representatives, departmental 

Page 14



representatives and the Staff Side Secretary. A more detailed schedule of responses will be 
circulated separately. 

 
3.15 A copy of the written response received from Unison on 12 October is attached at Appendix 2 

and a copy of the draft report previously circulated by the Staff Side Secretary is attached at 
Appendix 3. 

 
  Single Local Annual Pay Review Mechanism  
 
3.15 The main issue for staff as regards this aspect of the proposals is whether in return for giving 

up their contractual link to any NJC or GLPC pay increases, they can trust the Council to 
deliver across the board pay increases which are no less than those that they might otherwise 
receive. Staff can understand the Council’s wish to be fully in control of its finances, but are 
fearful that the real objective behind the proposals is to create a local process that can be 
used to deliver future budget savings, despite re-assurances that the Council is committed to 
maintaining competitive terms and conditions of service in order to recruit and retain a well 
motivated quality workforce. 

 
3.16 Staff are also concerned that any across the board increase will be less than it might be, 

because a larger share of any available “pot” will be set aside for the non-consolidated 
rewards for exceptional performers which do not increase the base salaries’ budget in future 
years. The Assistant Chief Executive (HR) has sought to re-assure staff that the Council will 
need to maintain basic salaries commensurate with those elsewhere in the marketplace, but 
these concerns remain. 

 
3.17 Although the trade unions are fundamentally opposed to the Council’s withdrawal from 

national and regional pay bargaining, at a collective level the Trade Unions have 
acknowledged that it would not be possible to take local decisions on the annual pay review 
whilst also remaining within the NJC and GLPC frameworks.  

 
3.18 The trade unions have also expressed their opposition to the Council’s proposal to consult 

rather than negotiate over the annual pay award locally, and the consequential erosion of their 
negotiating rights should the Council withdraw from the NJC and GLPC arrangements. The 
importance to the Council of re-aligning decisions about pay with considerations of other cost 
pressures through the budget setting process/timescale has been emphasised to 
representatives in the discussions, and the option of building in a time-limited period for 
negotiation was explored. However the trade union representatives concluded that this 
approach was unacceptable given that the potential for delay arising from collective bargaining 
is an inherent part of the negotiating process.  

 
3.19 From the perspective of schools’ staff, and in particular Head Teachers and Chairman of 

Governors clarification is sought from the Council as to how the funding implications of 
contractually binding and discretionary local pay decisions would be managed. In particular if 
these exceeded any assumptions about pay increases within the DSG allocations.   

 
3.20 A recurring view amongst staff is that they might be prepared to agree to give up their 

contractual link to national and regional pay bargaining if the Council were to offer some 
tangible guarantees or assurances about future pay awards. The Staff Side Secretary has 
suggested that there could be a formula based on RPI or an assurance that any increase 
would at least match the national pay award. 

 
Withholding the annual pay increase from under-performers 

 
3.21 There were mixed responses to this proposal. Some staff support the proposal as they felt that 

it resulted in a fairer approach. Others, including the trade unions, felt that poor staff 

Page 15



performance is a management issue which should be addressed using established 
procedures, but should not result in withholding pay from staff who are subject to the same 
cost of living pressures as the rest of the workforce. However, being able to withhold any pay 
increase due to poor performance would supplement rather than replace or supplant the 
existing disciplinary/capability procedures. Staff and the Unions were also reminded that the 
Council is currently able, under the existing national framework, to withhold increments from 
under performing staff.    

 
Localising other terms and conditions 

 
3.22 Staff perceive that they get a certain level of security from the national and regional  

arrangements because the trade unions have negotiated a “minimum” set of conditions below 
 which participating Councils cannot go. As such their concerns are similar to those set out  

above in relation to the proposed  local pay review arrangements. Despite being given 
examples where Councils have negotiated reduced terms locally, and being advised that 
changes to terms and conditions are currently under discussion nationally, staff still remain 
concerned and have therefore sought further guarantee that the Council will not make any 
detrimental changes to their terms and conditions. The Council’s continuing commitment to 
seeking agreement to any changes through local negotiation with the trade unions does 
however go some way to address this.  

 
 Contractual changes for Management Grade Staff 
 
3.23 Although Management Grade staff are already on localised pay arrangements, the proposals 

potentially have a relatively greater impact on this staff group. This is because of the potential 
impact that cessation of consolidated performance related pay will have both on pensionable 
pay and on individual’s ability to progress up the pay scales without any re-negotiation of basic 
salary. A number of managers have requested that in return for signing new contracts 
consideration be given to the re-introduction of incremental progression for staff on the 
management grades and/or a “buy-out” incentive similar to those in the Single Status 
Agreement to compensate for potential future losses. In response, the Assistant Chief 
Executive (HR) advised that an automatic increment scheme is not appropriate for MG staff 
partly because of the size and complexity of the MG grading structure.    

 
 A Scheme of Discretionary Non-consolidated Rewards for Exceptional Performance   
 
3.24 The nature and number of the comments received confirmed that performance related pay is 

an emotive issue, and re-assurances were sought that the scheme would complement rather 
than replace the existing range of recognition and reward measures.  Some respondents 
welcomed the opportunity to be considered for an additional reward, others (a good number), 
including the trade unions, expressed strong opposition for the concept and concern about the 
practicalities. Schools’ staff and head teachers were also unsure as to how such a scheme 
could work in schools, and preferred a possible team-based award instead at the discretion of 
the Head teachers and Governors. A number of staff stated verbally that they would be 
prepared to accept/consider localised pay if this scheme was withdrawn from the proposals. 
 

3.25 Staff sought re-assurances that the scheme would operate consistently across all  
departments/services, and that issues such as favouritism and relationships with managers 
would not affect transparency and fairness. There was also a general perception that it would 
not be possible to define nor achieve “exceptional performance” in some of the lower graded 
jobs in particular. Some staff expressed support for a team reward rather than one based on 
individual performance as they felt this better reflected the interdependency of roles in the 
public sector. Many staff felt that the scheme would be divisive, undermine teamwork and 
result in the majority of staff feeling undervalued and dissatisfied. Those staff who had worked 

Page 16



with similar schemes previously either expressed support or resistance dependant on the 
nature of their experiences. 
 

3.26 The majority felt that if such a scheme were to be introduced the criteria to determine 
exceptional performance should be operationally defined locally within the context of a 
particular service area. Some element of moderation would be  necessary to respond to 
concerns about consistency and fairness, and management training in the operation of the 
scheme would be essential. 

 
3.27 The type and amount of any reward payment also received a lot of attention. Initially the  

suggestion of a voucher scheme as an alternative to cash was viewed with some scepticism 
although this lessened as the range of options was explored. It was generally accepted that if 
the scheme were to proceed, then the value of the voucher/payment needed to be sufficient to 
act as an incentive and promote a sense of “reward”, but also be perceived as within 
acceptable limits by Council taxpayers and the public generally (the “onlooker test”).  

 
3.28 The range of options discussed included payments based on a percentage of basic pay (with  

an option to bottom-load for lower graded staff) or a fixed amount irrespective of grade;  
however no overall preference emerged.  The majority also supported a position whereby the 
Council arranged with HMRC to pay any tax due on the reward; this would have the 
advantage of  avoiding the de-motivating impact of a potential reduction in employees’ net pay 
in the following year as a result of tax liabilities. 

 
A Professional/technical grade equivalent to management grades 5 and 6  

 
3.29 Apart from seeking confirmation that the proposed grades for non managerial roles that 

evaluate higher than grade BR14 will in effect mirror the equivalent MG grades, this aspect of 
the proposals has received little attention from staff. This reflects the fact that affected staff 
have been reassured that this is only a change in the grade designation.   

 
4. Going Forward: Managing Staff Confidence 
 
4.1 If Members agree to recommend the proposals to Full Council for approval, officers will 

continue to engage staff and their trade union and departmental representatives including the 
Staff Side Secretary to gain and maximise their support and involvement during the 
implementation stage. The unions and their departmental representative colleagues’ 
constructive comments on the design of processes or procedures to support the 
implementation will be actively considered. Officers will also seek their involvement in 
evaluating the impact, if any, of the proposals on the staff recruitment, retention and morale, 
and performance management culture in the future.  

 
4.2 Officers will continue to reassure staff that the proposals will enable the Council to innovate 

and flex its reward strategies to reflect local financial circumstances, in a way not always 
possible under the existing national and regional negotiating frameworks. This approach is 
consistent with the Building a Better Bromley “Excellent Council” strategic objective. Being 
able to offer a merited reward to exceptional performers reflects this objective. Being able to 
recognise exceptional and good performers, and under performers and reward them according 
to their contributions to the organisations is fundamental to establishing an environment where 
knowledge can be generated, shared and deployed effectively to improve performance.  

 
4.3 Staff and their representatives have been reassured that the Council has no desire to offer 

less competitive terms and conditions to staff now or in the future and thus lose its competitive 
advantage in the labour markets. We will always monitor and consider benchmark data in 
local, regional and national markets in order to ensure the right rate is being paid for the right 
job at the right time.  

Page 17



 
4.4 As Members are aware a sizeable number of local authorities mainly in the South east area 

are already outside of the national and regional collective negotiating frameworks. There is no 
evidence from any of these authorities to suggest that a localised merited pay framework in 
Bromley will undermine the Council’s relationship with staff in the medium – long term. In the 
short term officers will continue to stress that the Council has no desire to undermine staff 
confidence in our terms and conditions of employment. It is not in the interest of the Council or 
the unions for staff to be alarmed about the proposed localised pay arrangement. This will be 
achieved by ensuring that the implementation process reflects the Council’s core values and in 
particular the REAL leadership values (Respect, Empower, Ambition, and Learn). The 
implementation will also be underpinned by the following core principles namely:  

 

• Transparency – merited pay will be evidenced and documented. No surprises. 

• Fairness – decisions will be scrutinized corporately by HR partly to ensure legal/equality 
compliance pursuant to the Equality Act 2010. 

• Simplicity – local managers will be empowered to exercise professional decisions with a 
high level of capability. Managers will receive additional training support to deliver a new 
look performance management culture. 

• Mandatory performance appraisal – supervision and appraisal is a “right” hence the latter 
will be mandatory going forward. Managers’ right to manage is incomplete or meaningless 
if managers fail regularly to appraise their staff contributions to Building a Better Bromley. 
Employees’ right to be managed fairly is equally important so too is their right to be 
supervised and appraised!       

 
5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The introduction of localised pay and conditions is consistent with the Council’s objectives 
around an Excellent Council and the HR Strategy. It also reflects the Council’s Core Operating 
Principles in particular the drive to be efficient and non-bureaucratic seeking to reduce 
interference and bureaucratic control. 

 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 With the exception of the Scheme for Exceptional Performance and ceasing both the annual 
pay increase for unsatisfactory performance and PRP for management grade staff, the 
proposals are based on an “as is” basis and can therefore be contained with existing budgets. 
Funding considerations related to any increase arising from the local annual pay review 
process and the one-off non consolidated rewards will be aligned with and considered as part 
of the Council’s normal budget setting processes. The cost of the independent annual pay 
advice circa £5k will also be contained within existing budgets. 

7. LEGAL AND PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 As was flagged up in the report to this Committee on 29 May 2012, the impact of the ongoing 
3 year pay freeze, the prospect of future pension scheme changes and the budget related/cost 
saving measures which are threatening job security across the board have all impacted on 
staff morale. The context within which this consultation process has been undertaken has 
therefore been difficult especially as the proposed changes are perceived by many to further 
threaten their security and be potentially to their detriment.  

7.2 In the current circumstances in particular employees are more inclined to seek guarantees and 
assurances before voluntarily agreeing to accept such changes, and this is reflected in many 
of the responses that have been received. 

7.3 The trade unions and the Staff Side Secretary are fundamentally opposed to the proposals in 
particular because they cannot be achieved without the Council withdrawing from the national 

Page 18



and regional collective bargaining arrangements. Local and regional trade union 
representatives have no mandate to agree to the changes locally, and it will therefore be 
necessary to obtain staffs’ individual agreement to implement the changes if they are agreed.  

7.4 If individual agreement is not secured then ultimately the Council may consider other legal 
options to achieve the changes including, as a last resort, the dismissal and re-engagement 
option. Given the trade unions’ position they are seeking their members’ commitment to refuse 
to voluntarily sign new contracts, and a likely consequence of this is that a further 90 day 
period of statutory consultation would be required to further explore all options first.  

7.5      There are no equality issues arising from the proposals. As stated elsewhere in this report, 
pursuant to the Equality Act 2010, HR will monitor and analyse the profile of staff in receipt of 
the proposed merited reward and the withdrawal of pay increase from poor performers.    

7.6 In general terms staff terms and conditions and remuneration are covered by Section 112 (2) 
Local Government Act t 1972 which provides that an officer appointed by the authority  

“L shall hold office on such reasonable terms and conditions, including conditions as to 
remunerationL”   

Terms and conditions and remuneration can be varied from time to time as long as proper 
procedures are followed. 

7.7 Other legal and personnel considerations are as set out throughout this report. 

 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: N/A 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Report HHR12003 General Purposes and Licensing 
Committee 29 May 2012 “Localised Pay and Conditions of 
Service” 
 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is left intentionally blank



APPENDIX 1 

Report No. HHR12003 PART ONE   
 

 

   

Decision Maker: General Purposes & Licensing Committee 

Date:  29 May 2012 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non Executive  Non Key  

Title: LOCALISED PAY AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

Contact Officer: Charles Obazuaye, Assistant Chief Executive (HR) 
Tel: (020) 8313 4355    E-mail:  charles.obazuaye@bromley.gov.uk 
Sue Sydney, Head of HR Operational Services 
Tel:  (020) 8313 4359   E-mail:  sue.sydney@bromley.gov.uk 
Barbara Plaw, HR Manager (Pay and Benefits) 
Tel: (020) 8313 4993    E-mail:  barbara.plaw@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Charles Obazuaye, Assistant Chief Executive (HR) 

Ward: Borough wide 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 The annual pay award and various other staff terms and conditions are currently determined 
via joint employer/trade union negotiations conducted at national (NJC) and regional (GLPC) 
level. However now more than ever before the various challenges facing local authorities differ 
significantly according to their local circumstances. One effect of this is that the NJC and 
GLPC negotiating frameworks are hampered by the inevitable difficulties arising from the need 
for them to attempt to reconcile the different policy approaches and financial circumstances of 
the various constituent local authorities.  

 
1.2 Current challenges facing local authorities include operating with limited and decreasing 

resources and competing demands. It is therefore essential to ensure that decisions with 
significant financial implications are controlled locally, and aligned with budget setting 
processes and performance outcomes. Within this context this report sets out proposals aimed 
at withdrawing Bromley from the national and regional collective bargaining arrangements and 
introducing localised pay and conditions for all staff except teachers.  

 
1.3 Subject to Members’ endorsement of the proposals and agreement the Assistant Chief 

Executive (HR) will embark on a process of formal consultation with the relevant recognised 
trade unions, staff and staff representatives. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 The General Purposes and Licensing Committee is asked to: 

2.1.1  Note and comment on the proposals set out in this report; and 

2.1.2 Authorise the Assistant Chief Executive (HR) to progress formal consultation with trade 
union and departmental representatives and staff. 

Page 21



Corporate Policy 

 

1. Policy Status: New Policy  
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated Cost  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring Cost  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre:  Council-wide staffing budgets 
 

4. Total current budget for this head:  
 

5. Source of funding:  Existing Revenue Budget 2012/13 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):    The proposals affect all employees of the Council 
except teachers whose pay and conditions of service are currently governed by statute. 

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   The Officer Steering Group includes 
senior managers from service departments, and in addition to HR staff the project will also rely 
on the specialist input of a number of other staff across the Council including financial, legal and 
payroll services.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: 
 

2. Call-in: As this is a non-executive decision call in is not applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):   All staff covered by the 
proposals set out in this report are involved directly or indirectly in providing a range of front-line 
services. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 

Page 22



3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 In December 2009 the Council and relevant recognised trade unions reached a collective 
agreement known as the Single Status Agreement. The main thrust of the Agreement was to 
harmonise pay arrangements across different sectors of the Council’s workforce to address 
equal pay risks, whilst at the same time simplifying the pay structure to make it clearer, fairer 
and more efficient. 

 
3.2 By means of Single Status the Council introduced a pay and grading structure specific to 

Bromley known as the “BR grades”. Through local negotiations and agreement the Council was 
also able to introduce significant changes to certain other terms and conditions thereby ensuring 
that any enhancements to basic salary are offered only when there is evidence of a compelling 
business need to do so to deliver services.  

 
3.3 However although Bromley has gone some way towards localised arrangements, the annual 

pay review and a number of other core terms and conditions are still determined at national or 
regional level. This impacts on the control that the Council has over its own employment 
framework and the link with other business priorities.  

 
3.4 Following the implementation of Single Status there also remains a need to re-assess all  

management grade posts at grade MG6 to: 

• ensure that there are no residual equal pay issues at the interface with the new BR grades;  
and 

• find a more appropriate remuneration mechanism for those staff in highly technical and/or 
professional posts which do not carry management responsibility but which evaluate higher 
than BR14 (the top BR grade on the Bromley scale) 

 
3.5 Given the above context now is an opportune time for the Council to seek to extend its localised 

pay and grading arrangements in consultation with key stakeholders including trade unions and 
departmental representatives and staff. The key drivers behind the need for further change and 
localisation include: 

 

• Gaining control over the annual pay review process and timetable at a time of significant 
financial challenge for the Council in order to achieve better alignment with budget setting 
processes and greater responsiveness to change; 

• Exercising local control in order to give greater emphasis to local circumstances, and 
improve the Council’s ability to innovate and flex in ways not achievable within the 
nationally agreed terms;  

• Improving the Council’s ability to align reward with staff and organisational performance; 
• Achieving efficiencies through harmonisation of the management grade and other Bromley 

staff pay review arrangements. 
  

Proposals 
 

3.6 A big challenge will be balancing the proposals for change with maintaining a motivated and 
skilled workforce. It is therefore proposed that the Council withdraws from the current national 
and regional arrangements broadly on an “as is” basis. This means that with the exception of 
the proposals regarding the annual pay review and the performance related payments for 
management grade staff, existing terms and conditions would be “frozen” at the point of 
withdrawal. Any future changes would be for the Council to determine locally in conjunction with 
the trade unions, staff and staff representatives.  

 This approach would keep to a minimum the impact of the changes on existing staff whilst at the 
same time enabling the Council to exercise more control and improve the links between pay 
and performance. 

 

Page 23



3.7 If Members agree then the next steps are for the proposals summarised below and in the 
attached appendices to be the subject of detailed discussion with the relevant recognised trade 
unions, staff, departmental representatives and other key stakeholders. The outcome of these 
discussions and any subsequent changes will be reported to Members for consideration and 
approval. 

 
3.8    In summary the proposals are to introduce: 

 
3.8.1 A Single Local Annual Pay Review Mechanism (see Appendix 1) 

 
A single local annual pay review mechanism to replace the separate arrangements that 
currently exist for Bromley employees under the NJC Green Book, Soulbury Committee, Local 
Joint Negotiating Committee for Bromley Adult Education lecturers, and Management Grade 
staff. This would involve withdrawing from the existing collective bargaining arrangements as 
well as ceasing to accept a recommendation from Inbucon on the market movement in salary 
for staff on the Bromley management grades.  

 
3.8.2 A Scheme of Discretionary Non-consolidated Rewards for Exceptional Performance  

(Appendix 2) 
 
A scheme which aims to improve the links between pay and performance by recognising and 
rewarding exceptional performers on an individual basis. In order to maximise the amount of 
money that can be targeted to reward performance, and to ensure that the value of the benefit 
is not affected by other considerations, it is proposed that the nature of the rewards payable 
under the scheme are non-pensionable. The options to deliver this objective are currently 
under consideration and include, for example, non-cashable vouchers. 

 
3.8.3 A Professional/technical grade equivalent to management grade 6  

 
For highly specialised/technical posts which do not carry any significant management 
responsibilities, but which evaluate above grade BR14.  

 
4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The introduction of localised pay and conditions is consistent with the Council’s objectives 
around an Excellent Council and the HR Strategy. It also reflects the Council’s Core Operating 
Principles in particular the drive to be efficient and non-bureaucratic seeking to reduce 
interference and bureaucratic control. 

 
  
5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 With the exception of the Scheme for Exceptional Performance and ceasing the annual pay 
increase for unsatisfactory performance, the proposals are based on an “as is” basis and can 
therefore be contained with existing budgets. Funding considerations related to any increase 
arising from the local annual pay review process and the one-off non consolidated rewards will 
be aligned with and considered as part of the Council’s normal budget setting processes. 

5.2 This reports seeks Members approval to proceed with formal consultation on the draft 
proposals.  More details on the financial implications of the changes will be available once the 
final proposals, following the outcome of consultation, are known. Any final proposals will be 
reported to Members for their consideration.   

 

 

Page 24



6.0 LEGAL AND PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The Council is required by law to constructively engage and meaningfully consult staff and 
their representatives and, in particularly, the recognised Trade Unions on the proposals.  
Therefore, a series of consultative meetings and briefing sessions will be arranged across the 
entire organisation, including schools, to present the “raison d’etre” (business case for change) 
to staff, Trade Union and Departmental Representatives and other key change leaders and 
managers (e.g. Head Teachers, governors, line managers, etc.) in the organisation. 

 
6.2 The consultation process will not be easy, given the impact of the on-going pay freeze, 

pension changes and other budget related/cost cutting measures, at local and national levels 
on staff morale and the real or perceived level of trust amongst staff.  The initial reaction from 
the Unions is not encouraging and, whether they are open to persuasion with a view to 
achieving a collective agreement, will be assessed during the initial two month consultation 
period. 

 
6.3 If an agreement is not secured the Council may consider other legal options, including 

individual agreements by staff to vary their terms and conditions of service.  As a last resort, 
the Council may consider the “dismissal and re-engagement” option but this will require a 
further consultation of one month or three months, depending on the number of staff affected 
(in line with Section 188 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992). 

 
6.4 Also, the proposal reflects the provisions in the Localism Act, particularly as regards improving 

democratic accountability and transparency in senior staff pay.  
 

 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: [List non-applicable sections here] 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

[Title of document and date] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 25



Appendix 1 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 

 
OUTLINE PROPOSALS FOR A LOCALISED ANNUAL PAY REVIEW MECHANISM 

 
1. Context 
 
1.1 Reward and recognition is a key theme of the Council’s agreed HR Strategy. This includes 

establishing strong links between performance and reward, and celebrating individual and 
organisational achievements.  

 
1.2 Local authorities currently face significant challenges including the need to reconcile 

competing priorities and demands on resources whilst remaining competitive in the 
marketplace for skilled labour. The Council therefore believes the time is right locally to extend 
its ability to determine its own employment framework, including remuneration, in conjunction 
with key stakeholders and with the involvement of the relevant recognised trade unions.  

 
1.3 This paper should be read in conjunction with the paper setting out the Council’s proposals for 

the introduction of a scheme of non-consolidated Rewards for Exceptional Performers as part 
of its local reward and recognition framework. 

 

2. Objectives of the Annual Pay Review 
 
2.1 The Council expects high standards of performance from staff at all  

levels as the norm. By means of the process of the localised annual  
pay review the Council aims to 
 

• ensure that staff are appropriately rewarded for the job that they do; 
• enhance the Council’s ability to compete by maintaining a simple, fair, transparent and 

affordable pay and reward structure that attracts and keeps a skilled and flexible workforce;  

• improve the links between organisational efficiency, individual performance and reward; 
and 

• ensure that decisions on reward and recognition are better aligned with the considerations 
and timetable of the annual budget setting processes and timetable  

 
3. Scope 

 
3.1 The introduction of a single local annual pay review mechanism would replace the current 

arrangements for Bromley employees under the Green Book, Soulbury Committee, and 
Bromley local grades including Management Grade staff. 

 
3.2 As part of consultation consideration will be given to whether teaching staff at Bromley Adult 

Education College should also be included within the scope of these arrangements. The pay 
and conditions of this staff group are already determined locally by the Council’s Local Joint 
Negotiating Committee   

 
4. Proposed changes 

 
4.1 The introduction of a localised annual pay review will mean that subject to consultation the 

Council would: 
 
4.1.1 Withdraw from the NJC, GLPC and Soulbury Committees and introduce an annual local pay 

review mechanism to replace the existing national and regional collective bargaining 
arrangements;  
 

Page 26



4.1.2 Cease to accept a recommendation from Inbucon on the market movement in salary bands for 
staff on the Bromley Management Grades (MG). In future: 

4.1.2.1  the MG annual salary review would be undertaken via the same single local annual pay 
review mechanism as all other staff (except teachers whose pay and conditions are 
governed by statute); and 

4.1.2.2 The existing PRP scheme for MG staff will be discontinued. 
 
4.1.3 Introduce a scheme of discretionary non-consolidated non-pensionable Rewards for 

Exceptional Performance applicable to all staff; and 
 
4.1.4 Reinforce the link between individual performance and pay, by proposing to withhold pay 

increases for under performing staff. 
 
4.2 The process of the local annual pay review would lead to a local decision taken by full Council 

as part of the budget setting process. The Executive and subsequently full Council would 
consider the recommendations of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee and 
determine the amount to be allocated to any increase in staff pay in the coming year on the 
basis of: 

(a) a general cost of living increase; 
(b) the amount available to support the Council’s proposed scheme of non consolidated 

non-pensionable performance related rewards. 
 
4.3 Consideration by all parties involved in the annual review process will have particular regard 

to: 

• Affordability; inflation 
• Market settlements elsewhere including the NJC, GLPC and Soulbury Committee 
• Organisational performance 
• Stakeholder views 
• Trade union and staff perspectives 

 
4.4 Details of how the annual pay review mechanism might work and the key milestones in the 

process are set out in Table 1 attached. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 27



 

Table1 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY – LOCALISED PAY 
PROPOSED ANNUAL PAY REVIEW MECHANISM 

 
The staff falling within the scope of these arrangements are Bromley employees 
under the Green Book, Soulbury Committee, and Bromley local grades including 
Management Grade staff.  
 

TIMESCALE ACTION 
 

August/ 
September 

Officers assemble the relevant  information: 

• Affordability; inflation 
• Market settlements elsewhere inc NJC 
• Organisational performance 
• Stakeholder views 
• Staff representatives 

 

October/ 
November  

Officer led consultation meetings with Trade Unions to consider 
the information in the local context and to receive their annual 
pay submissions. 
 

December Officers present information to  General Purposes and Licensing 
Committee which makes recommendations to Executive and full 
Council 
 

December/ 
January 

Recommendations considered by E&R PDS and Executive   
 
 

Jan/Feb  GP&L and Executive recommendations presented to full Council 
which agrees amount and detail of any annual cost of living pay 
increase and the amount to be allocated to a non-consolidated 
performance payment “pot” to be included in the draft budget 
 

Jan/Feb Consultation on the draft budget including with staff and staff 
representatives  
 

February Executive and full Council receive outcomes of consultation and 
agree the budget 
 

1 April Effective date of any cost of living increase 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 28



Appendix 2 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY  

 
OUTLINE PROPOSALS FOR A SCHEME OF  

DISCRETIONARY NON-CONSOLIDATED NON-PENSIONABLE  
REWARDS FOR EXCEPTIONAL PERFORMANCE  

 
 

1. Context 
 
1.1 Reward and recognition is a key theme of the Council’s agreed HR Strategy. This includes 

establishing strong links between performance and reward, and celebrating individual and 
organisational achievements.  

 
1.2 The HR Strategy is based on an assumption that all staff come to work to do a good job and 

make a difference. The Council expects high standards of performance from staff at all levels, 
and seeks in return to maintain a simple, fair, transparent and affordable pay and reward 
structure that attracts and keeps a skilled and flexible workforce. As part of the strategy the 
Council is committed to developing a scheme based on non-consolidated rewards for 
exceptional performance. 

 
2. Objectives of the Scheme 
 
2.1 The Scheme aims to enhance the Council’s ability to recognise and reward exceptional 

performers, thereby improving the link between employees’ remuneration and performance on 
a local and more individualised basis.  

 
2.2 The Scheme offers all staff (except Teachers) the opportunity to be considered for a non-

consolidated non-pensionable performance related reward. It replaces the existing PRP 
scheme for Management Grade staff, and supplements a range of other recognition and 
reward measures as set out in Table 2. 

 
3.        Eligibility 
 
3.1 The Scheme is open to all employees except teachers who are excluded from the scheme on 

the basis that their pay is governed by statute. 
 
4.  Criteria 
 
4.1   In order to be considered for a non-consolidated non-pensionable performance related reward 

the employee will have: 
 

• Delivered exceptional/outstanding performance which goes well beyond the 
normal expectations of the role; and 

 

• Sustained a satisfactory attendance and disciplinary record. 
 
4.2 In applying the criteria the focus should be on outcomes i.e. what has been achieved as 

distinct from input/effort (e.g. hours worked).The scheme also seeks to avoid “double 
counting” in that it is a condition of the scheme that the employee has not and would not more 
appropriately be eligible to receive one of the pay enhancements set out in Appendix 1 for the 
same performance. 

 
 
 

Page 29



5. Amount of Payment  
 
5.1 The value of the rewards needs to be considered, options could be to base them on a 

percentage of basic pay (excluding any enhancements for weekends, nights, public holidays, 
travel etc) with a specified minimum amount, or a fixed sum. The amount payable may vary 
from year to year depending on the number of recipients and organisational performance, and 
may be weighted in favour of frontline staff.  

 

5.2  In order to maximise the amount of money that can be targeted to reward performance under 
this scheme, and to ensure that the value of the benefit is not affected by other considerations, 
it is proposed that the nature of the rewards payable under the scheme are non-pensionable. 
The options to deliver this objective are currently under consideration and include, for 
example, non-cashable vouchers. 
 

5.3 Rewards payable under this scheme will be liable for tax and national insurance contributions 
in the normal way. 

 
6. Frequency 
 
6.1 Nominations for a reward under this scheme will be considered annually by a corporate panel 

of officers (see section 7 below).  
  

Views are sought as to how this arrangement should be varied for school staff 
  

7. Nomination Process 
 
7.1 Nominations should be made to the appropriate Assistant Director by line managers or 

individuals; self nominations are allowed. Nominations will be informed by the outcomes of 
performance appraisal, but the scheme does not operate as an integral part of the 
performance appraisal process applicable to all staff. 
 

7.2 The nomination should include a supporting statement as to why the individual(s) are 
considered to meet the criteria set out in section 4 above. 

 
7.3 All nominations will be subject to moderation by the Assistant Director with nominees having a 

right of appeal to the Departmental Chief Officer. The Assistant Director will submit the final list 
of nominations to the Assistant Chief Executive (HR) by February each year. 

 
8. Decisions   
 
8.1 Staff below Deputy Chief Officer 
 
8.1.1 All nominations will be considered at a Directors’ meeting supported by HR. The Directors will 

be advised by an Officers’ Panel consisting of one service representative from each of the 
Departments, a Chief Officer, and an elected staff representative. 

 
8.1.2 The Assistant Director will attend to present his/her nominations to the Panel. 
 
8.1.3 The decisions of the Panel will be final. 
 
8.2 Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers 

 
8.2.1 Chief Officers will present their nominations to the Chief Executive who will consult with the 

Leader and Portfolio Holders before reaching a decision which shall be final. 
 

Page 30



 
Table 2 

 

 
PERFORMANCE RELATED RECOGNITION AND REWARD MEASURES 

 

MEASURE CRITERIA 

Acting Up  Temporarily undertaking the full duties and responsibilities 
of a higher graded post for a continuous period of 28 days 
or more (except where covering for annual leave) 

Honorarium Temporarily undertaking duties and responsibilities outside 
the scope of the employee’s substantive post where: 

• the additional duties and responsibilities are 
exceptionally onerous; and/or 

• the duties outside the scope of the post are undertaken 
over an extended period; and/or 

• the duties of a higher graded post are shared between 
two or more officers  

Accelerated 
increment(s) 

Where in the opinion of the Chief Officer an employee who 
is not on the maximum of the grade has demonstrated 
particular merit or ability 
 

Progression 
through a 
Linked Grade 

Where the employee has demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the Chief Officer that s/he has satisfied the criteria to move 
to the next higher grade in the career path, and will be 
undertaking the duties and responsibilities at the level of the 
higher grade 
 

Salary uplift 
for MG staff 
 

Where in the opinion of the Chief Officer or Chief Executive 
in consultation with the Assistant Chief Executive (HR) an 
employee has taken on additional responsibilities and/or 
demonstrated particular merit or ability 
 

Time off in 
lieu, Overtime 
or additional 
hours 

Recompense for hours worked in excess of the employee’s 
contractual hours under the arrangements agreed as part of  
the Bromley Single Status Agreement 

Soulbury SPA 
points 

Additional discretionary spine points for Soulbury staff 
based on LA service and a structured professional 
assessment to recognise their contribution to the Authority’s 
role in raising standards in schools, improving involvement 
of young people in community activities, and the promotion 
of child development and learning  

 

 
 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is left intentionally blank



APPENDIX 2 

1 
 

 
 

 
                       UNISON Bromley Branch 

Room 9 
Kingfisher House 

21-23 Elmfield Road 
Bromley 
BR1 1LT 

 
Tel No: 020 8315 6538 

 
 

 
 
 
          
 
 

RESPONSE TORESPONSE TORESPONSE TORESPONSE TO    
BROMLEY PAY &BROMLEY PAY &BROMLEY PAY &BROMLEY PAY &    CONDITIONSCONDITIONSCONDITIONSCONDITIONS    

LOCAL PROPOSALSLOCAL PROPOSALSLOCAL PROPOSALSLOCAL PROPOSALS    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposals for a localised annual pay review mechanism 
 

Proposals for a Scheme of discretionary non-consolidated 
non-pensionable rewards for exceptional performance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 2012 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Page 33



APPENDIX 2 

2 
 

Main points of the Response:- 
 

• The National Agreement provides a minimum standard for pay awards, terms & 
conditions for staff.  Withdrawing from the National Agreement will remove this 
protection for staff in LBB. 
 

• The National Agreement provides autonomy for local authorities in many areas.  
LBB can already enhance the pay, terms & conditions of its staff from within the 
National Agreement.  Whilst UNISON remains wholly opposed to any form of 
performance related pay, there is no requirement to withdraw from the National 
Agreement for such a scheme to be introduced. 
 

• The Local Government Association are currently looking to reform Local 
Government Pay, Conditions and Negotiating Machinery.  It would be wise for LBB 
to wait until such discussions have taken place before making a decision about 
withdrawal. 
 

• LBB have not provided staff with any guarantee that they will not seek to reduce 
their current (already minimum) terms & conditions of employment after 
withdrawal. 
 

• Removing the protection provided by the NJC will not be an attractive proposition 
to current or future staff and will not result in LBB being able to attract and retain a 
skilled and flexible workforce. 
 

• The proposal to withhold a cost of living increase from staff who are perceived to 
be ‘under-performing’ is unacceptable and is likely to lead to legal challenges. 
 

• A cost of living award must always take priority over any other pay award. 
 

• The proposal to prevent the trade unions from negotiating on behalf of their 
members is authoritarian and demonstrates LBB’s complete disregard for staff’s 
right to be a member of a trade union and for the right of that trade union to act 
on behalf of its membership to seek to obtain the best possible outcome through 
meaningful negotiation. 
 

• The introduction of a Scheme of discretionary non-consolidated rewards for 
exceptional performance (Voucher Scheme) opens LBB up to Equal Pay challenges. 
 

• The detail of how the Scheme will operate is not clear.  It is clear, however, that 
this will not make the pay structure clearer, fairer or more efficient.  The decision 
making process is severely flawed, unworkable, and can only result in a de-
motivated and angry workforce.   
 

• In order to enforce its proposals, the Council will have no choice but to dismiss and 
re-engage its workforce which will bring with it adverse publicity. 

FORMAL RESPONSE 
 

Page 34



APPENDIX 2 

3 
 

In providing a formal response to the ‘outline’ proposals put forward, Unison has met with 
and consulted with a large number of members who will be directly affected by the 
proposals. 
 
It is important to state at the beginning of this document that Unison and its members 
remain wholly opposed to LBB withdrawing from the National Agreement or introducing 
any form of performance related award scheme. 
 
We have conducted a survey amongst all our members who are directly employed by LBB.  
We believe the responses speak for themselves:- 
 
Withdrawing from the National Agreement 
97% of members do not trust the Council to not reduce pay, terms &conditions if the 
proposals are imposed. 
 
Introducing a scheme of discretionary non-consolidated rewards to exceptional 
performance 
A total 94% of members said that this proposal was a bad idea (17%) or a very bad idea 
(77%) 
 
All other responses on the above were either ‘not sure’ or ‘undecided’.  NO ONE thought 
either proposal was a good idea. 
 
Our position and comments on the proposals are set out below. 
 

National Agreement 
The National Agreement (Green Book) is a national body which all local authorities in 
Greater London are currently signed up to.  It means that pay awards, terms and 
conditions are negotiated at a national level and all those who are part of the Agreement 
adhere to the agreements made.  Part 2 of the Green Book is the part which can only be 
negotiated on at a national level (at the NJC) which includes an annual pay award. 
 
The National Agreement sets out the minimum standards for pay awards, terms & 
conditions of staff employed by local authorities signed up to it. 
 
If Bromley Council withdraw from the National Agreement it will be able to reduce the 
pay, terms & conditions of its staff to below the minimum standards set by the NJC.   
 
Bromley already provides only the minimum terms & conditions set out in the NJC.  It is 
important to note that within the National Agreement, Bromley has always had the 
autonomy  to provide its staff with better terms & conditions (as a number of other 
boroughs already do) but has consistently chosen not to do so. 
 
Staff are therefore extremely concerned that withdrawing from the National Agreement is 
the route by which Bromley will seek to reduce their pay and working conditions even 
further, particularly given the current financial climate and ongoing cuts programme. 
Staying within the National Agreement would assure staff that Bromley are committed to 
providing them with at least the national minimum. 

Page 35



APPENDIX 2 

4 
 

 
The Local Government Association are currently looking to reform Local Government Pay, 
Conditions and Negotiating Machinery.   
 
Withdrawing from the National Agreement would result in LBB losing the many benefits of 
national representation, including the economies of scale that national pay negotiations 
bring and the ability for the National Employers to speak on behalf of the sector in 
discussions with Government. 
 
Surely it would be wise for LBB to wait until such discussions have been held before 
‘jumping ship’.   
 

Terms & Conditions other than Pay 
Bromley proposes to withdraw from the National Agreement on an “as is” basis; that is, 
other terms & conditions (except for pay) will be “frozen” at the point of withdrawal with 
any future changes being determined locally.  Freezing other terms & conditions at the 
‘point of withdrawal’ does not in any way provide any reassurance or protection for staff in 
respect of future detriments they may suffer once they no longer have the protection of 
the National Agreement. 
 
LBB has not provided staff with any guarantee that their current (already minimum) terms 
& conditions of employment will not be attacked ‘after’ withdrawal.   
 

Localised control over budget setting for Pay Awards 
LBB argue that with the current challenges facing local authorities it is essential to ensure 
that decisions with significant implications are controlled locally and aligned with budget 
setting processes and performance outcomes and that localising terms & conditions will 
improve the Council’s ability to ‘innovate and flex’ in ways that the current nationally 
agreed terms have not encouraged. 
 
The only ‘achievement’ that withdrawing from the National Agreement can bring is that 
the Council may have the ability to set its pay award ready to pay on 1 April each year.  
Any other ‘innovations or flexibility’ are already possible whilst remaining in the National 
Agreement and always have been.  If Councillors have been advised this is not the case 
then they have been mis-informed. 
 
LBB, as with all other London Councils, have had to budget each year for a likely NJC pay 
award, albeit that for the past few years those monies have not been utilised in pay 
awards given the freeze on local government pay.  Unison does not understand why, 
when all other local authorities in London are able to budget in this way, that LBB are 
unable or unwilling to?  Again, there has been no restriction within the national agreement 
that has prevented LBB giving a pay award to its staff if it so wished, but it has chosen to 
continue with the pay freeze.  LBB refused to pay the £250 pay rise announced by George 
Osborne for all public sector workers earning under £21k a year.  Other London Councils 
(within the National Agreement) have paid the award, either as a consolidated or non-
consolidated payment.  This in itself demonstrates to staff that LBB have no real desire to 
support their staff, particularly those in the lowest paid roles.  If LBB are not willing to pay 

Page 36



APPENDIX 2 

5 
 

£250 to a small proportion of their staff, why would staff be convinced that LBB would 
make a pay award to the whole workforce? 
 
If LBB are arguing that they need to stay competitive in the labour markets then they will 
need to provide a pay award which is at least as high as any awarded through the NJC.  
In this respect, LBB will in any case have to put aside a budget for pay awards each year 
and which will need to be at least if not higher than that set aside in previous years.  This 
makes no financial sense given the current climate.  
 
It is the view of Unison and its members that this proposal is geared to provide LBB with 
the opportunity to take a decision not to make a pay award at an early stage in the 
budgeting process.  LBB have given no commitment or guarantee to staff that this is not 
the case; there is no promise or indication of a probable pay award via a local decision 
making process.   
 

Competition in the Labour Markets 
LBB claim that it is not in their interests to cut pay, terms and conditions as to do so would 
negatively impact on its ability to recruit and retain a ‘skilled and flexible’ workforce. 
 
LBB have provided to us figures on the net reduction in numbers of staff in each of the 
last three financial years:- 
 

Year Net Reduction in Staff 

09/10 28 

10/11 192 

11/12 224 

 
The proposal document makes a clear reference to staff already stepping ‘up to the 
challenges of delivering more (or the same) with less resources’ which is clearly the case 
given the reduction in staffing numbers.  Staff are already stretched to the limit. 
 
The proposal states that LBB wants to maintain a simple, fair, flexible, transparent and 
affordable pay and reward structure that attracts and keeps a skilled and flexible 
workforce. 
 
The Council has still been able (within the National Agreement) to offer enhancements to 
basic salary where evidence of a business need to do so is shown, thereby enabling LBB to 
recruit and retain staff where it may otherwise be difficult to do so. 
 
Other local authorities in London already provide better pay, terms & conditions for their 
staff within the National Agreement.  Bromley could choose to enhance pay, terms & 
conditions for its staff within the National Agreement to attract and retain a skilled and 
flexible workforce.  Offering a package that has no minimum levels of provision cannot be 
considered as an attractive proposition.  Whilst employees may currently choose to work 
in Bromley, this may well not be the case if their minimum protection levels disappear and 
they then seek the stability and guarantee that working for an employer within the 
National Agreement brings with it. 

Page 37



APPENDIX 2 

6 
 

LBB have provided no evidence to support its proposal to implement a ‘Voucher Scheme’ 
to reward exceptional performance.  Staff are far more likely to be attracted to a decent 
rate of pay than a voucher reward they may never be able to attain. 
 

SINGLE LOCAL ANNUAL PAY REVIEW MECHANISM 
 
Our opposition to this has been set out above.  In addition we would make the following 
comments:- 
 
Proposal to withhold pay increases for under performing staff 
Unison is firmly opposed to withholding a cost of living increase from staff who are 
perceived to be under-performing. 
 
There are processes and procedures in place for LBB to use if it believes staff are under-
performing.  Unison has also suggested the introduction of a Capability Procedure.  Whilst 
one is in place for community schools there is no such procedure for other LBB staff. 
 
The Council already, within the National Agreement, have the autonomy to withhold 
incremental rises for poor performance. 
 
To withhold a cost of living increase in addition to this is archaic and wholly unnecessary.    
Such a system would do nothing to attract and retain staff to work for LBB.  We believe it 
will be impossible to apply consistently across departments and will likely lead to legal 
challenges. 
 
There are many and varied reasons why a staff member may be ‘under performing’ for a 
period of time which could be related to factors such as family issues, illness, bereavement 
etc.  It is wholly unfair to penalise someone who is struggling to do their best in very 
difficult circumstances. 
 
It is Unison’s view that withholding cost of living awards from staff will be cost-driven and 
will result in staff being penalised because of budget pressures within departments.  
Currently, the numbers of staff having an incremental rise withheld due to poor 
performance is very low (based on figures provided by LBB) and we are deeply concerned 
that this figure will rise significantly if the ability to reduce salary costs via the cost of 
living award are introduced. 
 
Amount to be allocated to any increase in staff pay 
It is proposed that the Council will budget for staff pay on the basis of:- 

(a) A general cost of living increase; 
(b) The amount available to support the Council’s proposed scheme of non-

consolidated non-pensionable performance related rewards (‘Voucher’ Scheme) 
 
During discussions with LBB on the proposals it has been confirmed that this proposal 
does allow for the Council to make a decision to not provide a cost of living increase but to 
budget only for the ‘voucher’ scheme. 
 
This is wholly unacceptable. 

Page 38



APPENDIX 2 

7 
 

An ‘across-the board’ cost of living award should always take priority over any other pay 
award available to staff.  That a well-deserved cost of living award could be taken from 
committed, hard-working staff in order to shore up a Voucher Scheme that will ultimately 
benefit a few in comparison is unpalatable, unjust and unfair. 
 
Removing negotiating rights from the trade unions in relation to pay 
It has been made very clear to the trade unions that LBB will not negotiate with us on pay 
awards.  Whilst we will be able to put in pay submissions and comments along with other 
stakeholders, we will be refused the right to negotiate. 
 
To staff, this authoritarian model demonstrates LBB’s complete disregard of an employee’s 
right to be a member of a trade union and for the right of that trade union to act on 
behalf of its membership to seek to obtain the best possible outcome through meaningful 
negotiation.   
 
Refusing to negotiate with the trade unions on Pay does not of course prevent trade union 
members from taking industrial action.  In our survey, 81% of members were prepared to 
take some form of industrial action against the proposals with a further 16% being 
undecided at this stage. 
 
The Council is more likely to avoid industrial action on Pay occurring if it meaningfully 
negotiates with the trade unions as part of the process. 
 

SCHEME OF DISCRETIONARY NON-CONSOLIDATED 
REWARDS FOR EXCEPTIONAL PERFORMANCE 
 
In addition to the comments made previously, we would add the following:- 
 
The detail of the Scheme and how it will operate is not at all clear and Unison has been 
unsatisfied with the response it has received to date.  During discussions with LBB on the 
proposals we have been accused of dealing in too much detail, however, our members 
want to know how the proposals will affect them personally and the lack of detail has 
prevented them from being able to comment as comprehensively as they would have 
wished. 
 
The ‘outline’ proposals appear to have changed throughout the process and we have not 
been provided with a final version of what will be presented to Councillors. 
 
Single Status 
The proposal refers to the Single Status Collective Agreement reached between LBB and 
the recognised trade unions in December 2009, the aim of which was to ‘harmonise pay 
arrangements across different sectors of the Council’s workforce to address equal pay 
risks’.  The proposal also states that at the same time it simplified the pay structure to 
make it clearer, fairer and more efficient. 
 
In order to be considered for a voucher, apart from sustaining a satisfactory attendance 
and disciplinary record, staff must have “delivered exceptional / outstanding performance 
which goes well beyond the normal expectations of the role.”     

Page 39



APPENDIX 2 

8 
 

Introducing rewards for ‘exceptional’ performance is counter-intuitive to the ethos behind 
single states – equal pay for work of equal value.  Under single status all roles were 
evaluated and given an appropriate grade to ensure that the work that staff carried out 
was valued appropriately and fairly rewarded in relation to all other roles in the Council. 
 
UNISON argues that if staff are working over and above what is expected of them, then 
the role needs to be re-evaluated using the recognised Scheme.  The new Scheme invites 
staff to work well beyond what their grade is recognised for in terms of pay in order to 
‘possibly’ be awarded a voucher. 
 
In addition, the Voucher Scheme will leave the Council vulnerable to Equal Pay claims.   
 
Performance related recognition and reward measures 
LBB already have a system by which staff can be rewarded for exceptional performance, 
measured by the following categories:- 
 

- Acting Up 
- Honorarium 
- Accelerated increment(s) 
- Progression through a Linked Grade 
- Salary uplift for MG staff 
- Time off in lieu, overtime or additional hours 
- Soulbury SPA points 

 
UNISON has requested that LBB provide information – over the last three years – on the 
total number of staff that received a performance related recognition and reward, broken 
down by numbers in each year, grades, and then further broken down by protected 
characteristics: gender, race, sexual orientation and disability. 
 
We have been advised this information cannot be provided as it is not held in the format 
requested.  Unison has gone back to LBB requesting that as much information as possible 
is provided, broken down into the information that is held.  LBB must be able to provide 
figures on staff who have received performance related recognition payments, at least 
broken down by the various categories, grades and gender.  To date, this information has 
not been provided to us. 
 
During discussions, LBB have confirmed that the current reward measures will remain and 
the ‘Voucher Scheme’ will be in addition.  UNISON has asked for a clear definition of what 
is meant by “delivered exceptional / outstanding performance which goes well beyond the 
normal expectations of the role”.  To date, we have not had a satisfactory response to 
this, only that this will be “determined by managers within the grade having regard to 
specific service pressures and complexities”. 
 
It is unclear what exceptional performance, outside of the reward measures already 
available, exist.  LBB have not been able to demonstrate how the scheme will be 
determined “consistently and fairly”.  There is no specific criteria – it appears it will be on 
the basis of a manager’s / Panel’s perception of their staff – many of whom they will not 
know well or have an in-depth knowledge of the role they carry out. 

Page 40



APPENDIX 2 

9 
 

From discussions with our members, it is clear that those who are currently on MG grades 
believe that Performance Related Pay (PRP) does not work – they are already subjected to 
a PRP Scheme.  They are wholly opposed to the Voucher Scheme. 
 
Value of Reward Vouchers 
No information has been provided as to how the ‘pot’ will be distributed, who will be 
making decisions on who gets vouchers, or what the value of the vouchers will be. 
 

 
Department ‘Pot’ 
If each department is given a ‘department 
pot’ for awarding vouchers  then it follows 
that depending on the number of staff 
considered to have ‘excelled’ the value of 
the vouchers will vary across department . 
 

 
 
 
 
How can this be fair to all staff? 

 
Central ‘Pot’ 
If the pot of monies for vouchers is held 
centrally, then the number of staff 
considered to have ‘excelled’ will receive 
vouchers of the same value 

 
Depending on the number of staff 
considered to have excelled, the voucher 
value could be considerably different each 
year – depending on both the pot of money 
budgeted for and the number of successful 
staff in the scheme 
 
How can this be fair? 
 

Vouchers – Set Amount 
It has been indicated that the vouchers will 
be a specific, set amount. 
 
Regardless of the level ‘Pot’ is held at, 
because there is a set budget, there will be 
a limited number of voucher awards 
available.  It then follows that those making 
the decision will be doing so based on the 
number of vouchers available to be 
rewarded rather than genuinely considering 
whether a member of staff has ‘excelled’ 

 
 
 
 
How can this be fair?   

 
If LBB are committed to rewarding staff who have ‘excelled’ then in order for the scheme 
to be truly fair, all those who meet the (undefined) criteria would receive a voucher of a 
certain amount.  Putting aside a specific limited ‘pot’ of money for vouchers can only be 
divisive and lead to inequality of treatment. 
 
It doesn’t work. 
 
 
 

Page 41



APPENDIX 2 

10 
 

Decision making process 
 
The proposal states that nominations will be considered at a Directors meeting supported 
by HR and that the Directors will be advised by an Officers’ Panel consisting of one service 
rep from each of the departments, a Chief Officer and an elected staff rep. 
 
We have since been advised that it is the preferred option that “managers will be 
empowered to make the decision”, albeit that staff have raised legitimate concerns around 
possible relationship difficulties with managers. 
 
To date, there are no firm proposals for us to comment on. 
 
There is no clear appeal procedure.  UNISON’s view is that this Scheme leaves itself wide 
open to the ‘blue-eyed boy’ syndrome where perceptions of favouritism and unfairness will 
emerge and which can only create bad feeling within workplaces with staff being singled 
out for special treatment, regardless of the hard work and commitment that is shown by 
all staff on a daily basis in order to deliver services amidst staff reductions and budget 
cuts. 
 
The Scheme can only lead to a de-motivated and angry workforce.  Those who do not 
benefit from a discretionary payment/award are likely to form a large percentage of the 
workforce given the likely budget available for such a Scheme – based on LBB’s continual 
stance that savings must continue to be made and budgets continue to be cut. 
 
Community Schools 
There is no indication of how the voucher scheme may work in schools or how the 
voucher scheme would be funded ie; whether schools will have access to the budgeted 
‘pot’ or whether schools will be expected to introduce the scheme but from their current 
budget allocation.  
 
How can this be fair to schools staff? 
 
It is difficult to comment on the effect on schools staff when no information is available on 
how the Scheme is to be implemented. 
 
Unison is wholly opposed to the proposal. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
LBB currently incur a cost for the independent advice regarding market 
settlements/salaries elsewhere for the management grade pay award.  LBB have 
confirmed that this cost will be higher as future information will need to relate to the 
whole workforce. 
 
Although UNISON has asked for information on the current costs and likely future costs, 
this information has not been provided. 
 

Page 42



APPENDIX 2 

11 
 

UNISON’s position is that it does not accept that the financial implications are small or ‘nil’ 
due to withdrawing on an ‘as is’ basis as has been stated by LBB. 
 
The cost of ‘buying in’ information, as with management grades currently – but for the 
whole workforce, will carry a higher cost in the future.   
 
The complexity involved in a local authority considering and consulting on an annual pay 
award cannot be under-estimated and we are adamant that costs to the Council in staff 
time alone will be significant. 
 

LEGAL AND PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
UNISON and the other trade unions have made it clear from the beginning of the process 
that we will not and cannot enter into a collective agreement to vary staff’s terms & 
conditions. 
 
The Council will have to vary each and every staff member’s contract of employment. 
 
We have collected hundreds of signatures from staff who are very clear that they will not 
sign a new contract of employment on a voluntary basis. 
 
With well over 100 staff refusing to sign voluntarily, the Council will have to consult for a 
further 90 days and will have no choice but to seek to dismiss and re-engage the 
workforce and will undoubtedly be subject to adverse publicity if this course of action is 
followed. 
 

CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
The National Agreement provides a protection for staff that means they have a guarantee 
that their terms & conditions will not fall below a certain minimum standard.   Withdrawing 
from the National Agreement will remove this minimum protection.  This will only serve to 
make it more difficult for LBB to attract and retain a skilled and flexible workforce.  
Remaining in the National Agreement and providing enhanced pay, terms & conditions 
that are fairly applied to all is the only way LBB can achieve this. 
 
LBB argue that they wish to ‘innovate and flex’ in ways that they cannot do whilst in the 
National Agreement.  This is not the case and many options are available to LBB to be 
flexible within the National Agreement. 
 
UNISON members are wholly opposed to LBB withdrawing from the National Agreement 
and to the introduction of a rewards scheme for ‘exceptional performance’.  The reasons 
for this have been set out in this document. 
 
LBB have provided no guarantees to staff with regards to the protection of their current, 
minimum, pay terms & conditions once withdrawal has taken place. 
 
The Local Government Association are currently looking to reform Local Government Pay, 
Conditions and Negotiation Machinery and it would therefore be wise for LBB to wait until 

Page 43



APPENDIX 2 

12 
 

such discussions have taken place before making a decision to move to localised 
arrangements is made. 
 
 
 
Helen Reynolds 
Pro-temp Branch Secretary for Bromley UNISON 
and UNISON Regional Organiser 

Page 44



 

APPENDIX  3 

STAFF SIDE SECRETARY 

REPORT  

 
 
Staff Side office  
Room A108  
Ann Springman  
Civic Centre 
020 8313 4405  

 
 
August 2012 

 
 

Proposed withdrawal  
From National Terms and Conditions 

 
1. Introduction  
 
This report is in response to the council’s current consultation on the 
proposed setting up of local pay and conditions for all non teaching staff and 
removing staff from the National Joint council (NJC) terms and conditions and 
the Solbury terms and conditions.  
 
The council have been (unsuccessfully) at pains to try and persuade staff that 
the proposals are not an attempt to attack the wages and conditions of staff.  
 
Given that this exercise is being conducted in a climate of massive budget 
reductions, the biggest job cuts in Bromley’s history with the promise of more 
to come, staff are rightly suspicious of the council’s intensions.  
 
This suspicion has further increased as detailed proposals have come forward 
and the failure of the council to offer any guaranteed assurances.        

2. Overwhelming opposition from staff       
 
The views of staff have been clearly demonstrated on a number of occasions 
to the council.  
 
 
 

Page 45



 

2.1 Council meeting 25th June 2012   
 
The resolution moved by the Staff Side at the full council meeting on the 25th 
June required a minimum of 500 signatures from the staff this was easily 
exceeded.  
 
2.2 Lobby of the Council 25th June      
 
Over 120 staff attended the lobby called by just one trade union. This was the 
biggest lobby faced by the council since it started its cuts programme in the 
last two years.   
 
2.3 Staff Side ballot  
 
Despite a request from the Staff Side for the council to conduct a ballot the 
council refused. In light of this as the staff side secretary I have been 
conducting my own ballot of all affected staff. The question posed in the ballot 
is “Do you support the council’s proposals to come out of national 
terms and conditions”.  
 

To date 726 staff have voted with just 7 staff supporting the 
council’s proposals and 719 voting to oppose the proposals.      
 
It should be noted that the ballot has been conducted after the council has 
issued the details of the proposals to all staff and at the same time as the 
senior HR officers have been travelling the borough conducting “road shows” 
to sell the proposals to the staff, road shows which the staff side and trade 
unions were not allowed to participate in.  
 
Given that I have also had the obstacle of having to conduct the ballot at peak 
holiday time and with school staff not at work, It is clear from the massive 
response to the ballot so far that there is no support for the proposals even 
from the council own management.  
 
It is my intention to run the ballot up to the 26th September council meeting to 
allow as many staff as possible to vote.    
 
   

3. Why we are opposed to the specific proposals  
 
3.1 The Annual Pay award  
 
At the moment if a cost of living pay award is awarded nationally the council is 
contractually bound to pay it to every worker from the 1st April each year.    
 
The council tries to state that we have nothing to fear from this yet during the 
consultation it has refused to give any assurances with regards to the pay 
award.  
 

Page 46



 

They have not stated for instance that any local pay award would either at 
least match the national pay award or that it would be based on a formula that 
was “RPI plus a %” like the ones that exist in the rail industry.  
 
3.1.2 Bad Past experience  
 
Frankly Staff do not trust the council as they have already had the experience 
of what the council has done at a local level on pay in the recent past.   
 
When the government announced a £250 pay rise for all public sector workers 
earning under £21k a year, what did Bromley do?  They refused to pay it!  
 
Some councillors appear to be under the misapprehension that they were not 
allowed to pay this, this is a myth a number of councils did pay it whilst still 
remaining in the national agreement if they can do it why didn’t Bromley?  
 
We have also seen what they did when the managers were supposed to get a 
contractual 1% pay rise last year. The council said it was not fair to pay to 
managers and not staff.  I then asked that they pay 1% to all staff and they 
refused and instead effectively stole their own manager’s money.  
 
3.1.3 Timing of Pay award 
 
It is being suggested that one of the reason the council wants to have local 
pay awards is to help plan for in year budgets. I do not accept this argument . 
The council sets a budget for all services in March and regularly has to vary 
them in year according to service needs. This is no different to pay the council 
makes a provisional estimate as to the award and then pays the award once 
agreed backdated to the 1st April. Only on one occasion in the last 25years 
has the council had to make an in year additional payment. In recent years 
the trend is fort the council to have to pay out less than it budgeted for. If this 
were the only real reason for local pay it is not beyond the whit of the council, 
staff side and unions to find a way of remaining in the National pay bargaining 
arrangements and getting budgeting certainty in April each year. For instance 
it could negotiate the award to be paid by March and then top it up and back 
date it, if the NJC award was subsequently greater without coming out of the 
NJC.   
 
However the staff side feels that the budget timing issue is merely a 
smokescreen.  
 
3.1.4 Imposition not negotiation  
 
Originally the council’s indicated that all it intended to do was to replace the 
national negotiations over pay and replace them with local negotiations.  
  
However as the details emerged it is clear what we are being asked to accept 
is local “consultation” and then imposition not negotiations.   
 
 

Page 47



 

3.1.5 Double jeopardy “poor performers”  
 
The second and key problem over the pay award is if a pay award is agreed 
locally by councillors in February each year then it will be paid to all staff in 
April, BUT management will be able to withhold the pay award from 
“underperforming staff”.  
 
This would mean a pay award that is supposed to deal with the increase in 
cost of living is now to be used as a stick to beat staff with to work harder or 
face having paid rises denied to them.  
 
The Staff Side believes that this is a recipe for staff to be picked on or used as 
an excuse to save money for a department or section particularly when 
mangers are under pressure to come up with another £25m to save.  
  
If staff were “underperforming” the council already has policies and 
procedures it can use, ultimately it can discipline staff for poor performance. 
This proposal could lead to double punishment for staff.  
 
The HR negotiators have alleged that there is often a call from staff that 
“under performance is not being dealt with by management”, (despite the fact 
that I don’t believe that there is any evidence to back this up), even if this was 
the case then that is the fault of management in not dealing with it, not an 
excuse to hold back a workers pay rise.   
  
 3.1.6 Performance related Pay rises - “a life sentence” 
 
The council have failed to see the long term effect of with holding a pay rise in 
any one year.  It would mean that if in one year of a workers working life with 
the council they were deemed to have “underperformed” their pay would be 
held whilst others increased. The effect of this would be they would end up 
earning less than their colleagues doing the same job forever, no matter how 
good their future work was. This is legally questionable let alone morally.  
 
 

3.2 The New Bonus scheme – A Divisive Dangerous Gimmick  
 
The council have now come forward with their bonus scheme proposals called 
“A scheme of discretionary non consolidated non pensionable rewards 
scheme for exceptional performance” They are proposing to make a 
payment for those deemed to “delivered exceptional performance which 
goes well beyond the normal expectation of the role”.  
 
However it is not to be a pay rise or a re-grading, it is in fact not even going 
to be paid in cash but will be a “Non cashable voucher”! This voucher will 
not count towards a worker’s on going pay or pension.  
 
There has been no budget set aside for this scheme and no figure placed on 
the bonus.   
 

Page 48



 

During the negotiations it has been suggested that this will be set each year 
by the council. It has not been decided whether it’s a fixed figure or to be 
done as a percentage of a workers wage.  
 
Having a limited pot one way or another will either mean smaller payments 
made from year to year or less people get it from year to year which would 
defeat the alleged purpose of paying for “exceptional performance”.        
 
To qualify staff have to deliver exceptional performance but this won’t be 
measured by how much “effort” you put in or “hours worked” but on the 
“outcomes” of your performance.   
 
Even if a staff member meets this superman status they could still be denied it 
if their sickness level is deemed unsatisfactory, so if a member of staff ends 
up making themselves sick working to hard, they lose out! 
 
In the council meeting in June the leader of the council and the portfolio 
holder said they believed that the majority of staff were “hard workers and 
performing very well”.  The effect of this sort of is it divisive and would act to 
demoralise the majority of hard working staff. It goes without saying that for 
every one person given the “bonus” hundreds more won’t get it.  
 
Given that no assurance have been given re the annual pay award the staff 
side believes that having the bonus scheme could be used to spell the end of 
pay rises altogether to be replaced by a non consolidated bonus scheme 
seeing our pay shrink further and further.     
 
If the council is so wedded to the introduction of a bonus scheme it could 
introduce one without the need to opt out of the NJC or Solbury agreements 
as such I do not accept that this is a justification for the proposal.  
 
 

3.2 Other terms and conditions not protected  
 
Along side the Pay award, the proposal would mean placing all our other 
conditions (such as annual leave, sick pay, maternity and grading scheme) 
into a new Bromley set of terms and conditions.  
 
Whilst the council has said that at the point of transfer to the new Bromley 
contract they would remain the same as they are now. However the 
consultation document states that they would be looked at on an “as is 
basis”.  The Staff Side believes that given the council has failed to give any 
assurances that all these terms and conditions would remain at least in line 
with the NJC agreement if not within the NJC then this proposal puts staff at 
risk of the council beginning to attack those terms and conditions as well.   
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

3.3 Impact on Management Grade (MG) staff   
 
At the time of writing whilst I am aware of the proposal to remove some 
professional based staff from the Management grades due to the fact that 
they don’t manage staff. To date I have not been told which staff are to be 
removed from the MG grades and I have not been told what the proposed 
new grade for these staff is to be.  
 
The management grade staff would of course be affected by the negative 
implications of removing them from the protection of the national agreements 
on annual leave, sick pay etc and will now also be affected by the new pay 
proposals and lose their current performance related pay agreement. As such 
all the above comments are equally applicable to these staff.      
 
 
 
 
Glenn Kelly  
Staff Side Secretary  
 

Page 50



1 

 
 
 

 

 
 

Constitution Improvement  
Working Group 

 
Fourth Report 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 51



2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



3 

 
 

Foreword 
 
 

In our previous reports we examined the role of the full Council Meeting and 
suggested ways to make it more relevant to the interests and concerns of our 
residents. (1st Report November 2008). We recommended in our Second 
Report, reforms to the Portfolio Holder meeting process and as a result the 
need for more than 40 meetings was eliminated by improving the pre scrutiny 
arrangements in the PDS meetings. (2nd Report January 2009). Our Third 
Report made a number of proposals to ensure that the Council constitution 
was reformed with the changes required under the 2007 Local Government 
Act; these included greater powers and a four year term for the Leader. We 
also made a range of recommendations with regard to our scrutiny process 
particularly with regard to the Local Strategic Partnership and its boards. (3rd 
Report October 2009) 
 
Much has happened in the past three years. The creation of a Coalition 
government, following the inconclusive General Election result in May 2010, 
has brought new legislation in the shape of the Localism Act which seeks to 
derogate powers to local communities from central and local government. 
There has been a welcome reduction in some of the burdens placed on local 
government and a loosening of the previous standards regime. We have 
already made recommendations in this area and these have been 
incorporated into the Council’s new arrangements for maintaining and 
monitoring the conduct of members and officers. 
 
This Report examines whether, in the light of the new dispensation to allow 
local councils to revert to the committee system, Bromley should discontinue 
the current governance arrangements. We also examine the case for area 
committees with regard to planning and environment matters. Although the 
majority of the working group were opposed to such committees we have left 
the matter for the full council to debate and decide. Although we have made it 
clear that we do not support a revision to the committee system we are 
mindful of the importance that the full council meeting played in that system in 
making key decisions and we therefore make a number of important 
recommendations aimed at widening the decision making role of the full 
council. We have also asked the Director of Resources and Legal Services  to 
prepare detailed recommendations for the working group to consider early in 
the new year so that we can make further detailed recommendations for 
incorporation in a revised constitution at the Annual meeting in May 2013. 
 
The other major set of recommendations relates to the use of new technology. 
The public sector has lagged behind commercial companies in seizing the 
opportunities for improved communications with customers and for reducing 
unnecessary costs. The New Technology Working Party, chaired by Cllr Will 
Harmer, reported nearly two years ago - we have built on a number of their 
recommendations insofar as they relate to the way members use new 

Page 53



4 

technology. We have also asked the New IT working group to advise on the 
detailed changes towards the introduction of a relatively paperless system in 
2014 through the use of tablets, taking account of the trialled use by some 
members in the present council.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Nicholas Bennett JP 
Chairman 
Constitution Improvement Working Group 
October 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Acknowledgements  
 
The Working Group thanks Mark Bowen, Director of Resources, Sue Essler, 
Head of ICT and Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager, for their 
assistance and support in preparing this report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



5 

 
 
 

FOURTH REPORT OF THE 
CONSTITUTION IMPROVEMENT WORKING 

GROUP 
 
 
 

 
General Purposes & Licensing Committee - 23rd October 2012 

Executive - 24th October 2012 
Council - 12th November 2012 

 
 
 

Index 
 
 
1.  Executive Summary – Recommendations       6 
 
2.  Background            9 
 
3.  Issues considered by the Woking Group      10
  

(A) Options for Governance       10 

(B) Executive Decision-Making        11 

(C) Area Committees         12 

(D) Enhancing the Role of Full Council Meetings    13 

(E) Councillors’ IT          15 

(F)  Freedom of Information Requests       17 

(G) Councillor Numbers        17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



6 

1.   Executive Summary – Recommendations  
 
  
1.        That the present Leader and Cabinet system of governance be 

retained. 
 
2. That, where PDS Committees and Portfolio Holders are in 

agreement,  Portfolio Holders may make decisions without formal 
pre-decision scrutiny in the following categories and 
circumstances - 

• Appointments made by the Portfolio Holder where there is only 
one nominee; 

• Local schemes costing less than £35k which affect only one 
Ward, e.g.: minor highways schemes, where all Ward 
Councillors are in support of the proposal; 

• Contract extensions where there are no performance issues 
with the contractor and the contract includes a provision to 
extend; 

• Contract awards where there has been a gateway review and 
the award is proposed to be made to the most economically 
advantageous tenderer; 

• Contract waivers where the Portfolio Holder is required to 
agree single tender action; 

• Matters considered by the Executive where further action can 
appropriately be delegated to a Portfolio Holder; 

• Any other matter that the Portfolio Holder can decide under the 
Scheme of Delegation where there has been no objection from 
any Member of the relevant PDS Committee. 

All these categories of decision will be subject to the Portfolio 
Holder circulating his proposed decision to all Members in 
advance by email as a “minded to” decision; any Member may 
request that a matter be referred to the relevant PDS Committee 
before a decision is taken.   
 

3. The Working Group reports that there are mixed views on the 
issue of Area Planning Committees and makes no 
recommendation. 

 
4. That either the Leader or 9 Members of one recognised political 

group, or 5 Members across two political groups, be permitted to 
initiate a debate on any matter of local importance before full 
Council, prior to an Executive decision being taken. 

 
5. That the Director of Resources and Finance Director be instructed 

to undertake work to review the policy framework and financial 
thresholds for Council decision making, so that any changes may 
be implemented after the Annual Meeting in 2013. 

 
 

Page 56



7 

 
6. That Council should be the appropriate authority to consider 

major planning applications on the recommendation of the 
Development Control Committee or at the request of twenty 
Members of the Council. 

 
7. The Council’s e-petition facility be removed but the Petition 

Scheme otherwise continue un-amended. 
 
8. The scheme of public and Member questions be amended to allow 

supplementary questions on replies from members of the Council. 
The timing should remain at 30 minutes, subject to the Mayor’s 
discretion to extend the time.  

 
9. The prohibition on recording of meetings by members of the 

public be removed, subject to suitable disclaimers and a right for 
the meeting to demand that recording be stopped. 

 
10. Video cameras should be provided in the Council Chamber to 

allow the provision of vision as well as sound for overflow rooms. 
 
11. Master recordings be made of full Council meetings. 
 
12. Further work should be undertaken by the New Technology 

Working Group to examine how Councillors can use new 
technology more effectively to achieve economies and efficiency 
as part of a wider assessment of Member support, examples 
being: 

 
(12.1) Encouraging a move from Council-financed fixed line 
phones and broadband across to mobile phones and use of 
Councillors’ own broadband; 
 
(12.2) Trialling hand held/tablet devices as an alternative to 
hard-copy deliveries and extending the use of team sites 
(similar to that used to support this review) to make 
background portfolio information available on an on-going 
basis to Councillors rather than providing this only in “for 
information” agenda reports; and 
 
(12.3) Enhanced presentation facilities to support public 
access to Council meetings, such as better hearing loops in 
Civic Centre rooms. 
 

13. Members elected before 2010 should be encouraged to switch 
away from Council provided landlines to mobile phones. 

 
14. Members should be allowed a monthly allowance for using their 

personal mobile phones rather than Council supplied equipment 
for Council business. 

Page 57



8 

 
15. Tablet computers should be provided to all Members from 2014 

and paper delivery stopped. 
 
16. Tablet computers should be provided on request for those 

members prepared to forgo printed agenda papers. 
 
17. Teleconferencing, skype and similar new technology approaches 

are endorsed for use at informal meetings wherever practical for 
those Members who are unable to be present and investigations 
be made into the legal issues for their use for more formal 
meetings. 

 
18. All Freedom of Information questions and answers should be 

made available via the Council’s website. 
 
19. Work be initiated to secure a review of Councillor numbers in time 

for the 2018 election. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



9 

2.     Background  
 
2.1 At its meeting on 14th December 2011 the Executive decided to re-
constitute the Constitution Improvement Working Group to carry out a short 
piece of work considering the issues for the Council’s Constitution arising from 
the Localism Act 2011.  Ten members of the Council were appointed to the 
Working Group as follows – 
 

Councillor Nicholas Bennett JP, (Chairman) 
Councillor Reg Adams, Liberal Democrat Group  
Councillor Graham Arthur, Resources Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Julian Benington, Conservative Group   
Councillor Eric Bosshard, Chairman, Executive & Resources PDS Committee 
Councillor Stephen Carr, Leader of the Council  
Councillor Peter Dean, Chairman, Development Control Committee 
Councillor Robert Evans, Conservative Group  
Councillor Peter Fookes, Labour Group  
Councillor Tony Owen, Chairman, General Purposes & Licensing Committee 

 
2.2 Although the Working Group was set up primarily to consider the impact of 
the Localism Act in relation to issues such as the standards system and 
options for returning to a committee system, it also considered a number of 
related issues such as Members’ IT, full Council meetings and executive 
decision making. The Working Group met on five occasions as follows – 
 

• 8th February 2012 

• 29th May 2012 

• 30th July 2012 

• 6th September 2012 

• 27th September 2012 
 
2.3 Recommendations on the standards system were reported to the 
Executive on 20th June 2012, Standards Committee on 19th June 2012 and 
then to full Council on 25th June 2012 in order that the new system could be 
approved to start as required on 1st July 2012. Council agreed (i) to endorse 
the adoption of the Model Code of Conduct produced by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government as adapted to retain the need to register 
all interests currently registered including maintaining a register of gifts and 
hospitality with the existing £25 threshold, (ii) to retain a Standards Committee 
(comprising the existing Councillor representatives), and (iii) agreed that 
requests for dispensation should be dealt with by the Urgency Committee.        
 
2.4 The Council decision on 25th June 2012 was supported by means of an 
officer report based on the Working Group’s deliberations. This current report 
picks up all the other issues considered by the Working Group since its re-
establishment in February 2012.      
 
  

 
  

Page 59



10 

 3.    Issues considered by the Working Group  
 
 
(A) Options for Governance 
 
3.1  The Localism Act 2011 set out four possible governance arrangements – 
 

• Leader and Executive (as currently operating in Bromley) 

• Executive Mayor and cabinet 

• Committee System 

• Other arrangements prescribed by the Secretary of State, including a 
hybrid system. (Any alternative arrangement would need to 
demonstrate that it would improve local governance and be of benefit if 
applied in other authorities.) 

 
3.2  We worked to two criteria for selecting the most appropriate governance 
arrangements for Bromley – 
 

• democratic oversight and involvement; 

• efficient, effective, economic and corporate decisions which reach the 
right conclusions.   

 
3.3  Arguments raised in support of a committee system included - 
 

• committees led to better quality decisions and more challenge of officer 
recommendations; 

• committees allowed all members to have a say; 

• committees allowed members to consider matters in more detail; 

• scrutiny could still happen under a committee system; 

• the policy development role of PDS Committees has not been as 
effective as hoped; 

 
3.4  Arguments advanced for keeping the existing leader and cabinet model 
included – 
 

• greater member involvement in decisions; 

• greater in-depth knowledge of leading members, especially portfolio 
holders, executive assistants  and  PDS chairmen, with more members 
working almost full-time as councillors; 

• many committee decisions were, effectively, taken in group meetings; 

• decision making is more member-led than under the committee 
system; 

• pre-decision scrutiny works well and call-ins are rarely needed; 

• the system allows for a clear decision-maker to be held responsible but 
also allows all members to be involved in a strong advisory role; 

• the current system is efficient and does not lead to “rogue committees” 
 
3.5  There were a variety of views in the Working Group, but most Members 
considered that the current system worked well and should be maintained. 

Page 60



11 

There was some support for a committee system, but very little for a hybrid 
system as it was difficult to see how such a system could operate in 
accordance with the principles set out in 3.2.  
 

Recommendation 1:  
         That the present Leader and Cabinet system of governance be 

retained. 
 
 
(B) Executive Decision Making  
 
3.6  The Working Group considered whether the current pre-decision scrutiny 
arrangements for individual portfolio holder decisions could be relaxed to 
allow the more routine decisions to be made without scrutiny at a Policy 
Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Committee meeting. These would be issues 
such as straightforward appointments, local schemes where there was no 
opposition from ward councillors and the like. Safeguards could include 
issuing a “minded to” report at least five working days before the decision was 
taken and allowing such decisions to be “called in” for scrutiny at a PDS 
Committee. Proposed decisions would have to be emailed to all Councillors, 
and any Member would be able to ask for a matter to go to the relevant PDS 
Committee.     
 
3.7  The Working Group agreed to recommend that the system for Portfolio 
Holder decisions should be streamlined where the PDS Committee and the 
Portfolio Holder were in agreement. 
 
3.8  The Working Group also noted that new rules on executive decision 
making came into effect on 10th September 2012. These removed the 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions in its current form but imposed a requirement 
for key decisions and decisions made in private by the Executive or a 
committee of the Executive to be publicised 28 days in advance (unless there 
were grounds of urgency.)  The rules did not apply to individual Portfolio 
Holder decisions, but did appear to cover all executive decisions made by 
officers – this was potentially a massive increase in bureaucracy and 
clarification was being sought on this issue.  
 

Recommendation 2:  
That, where PDS Committees and Portfolio Holders are in 
agreement, Portfolio Holders may make decisions without formal 
pre-decision scrutiny in the following categories and 
circumstances - 

• Appointments made by the Portfolio Holder where there is only 
one nominee; 

• Local schemes costing less than £35k which affect only one 
Ward, e.g.: minor highways schemes, where all Ward 
Councillors are in support of the proposal; 

• Contract extensions where there are no performance issues 
with the contractor and the contract includes a provision to 
extend; 

Page 61



12 

• Contract awards where there has been a gateway review and 
the award is proposed to be made to the most economically 
advantageous tenderer; 

• Contract waivers where the Portfolio Holder is required to 
agree single tender action; 

• Matters considered by the Executive where further action can 
appropriately be delegated to a Portfolio Holder; 

• Any other matter that the Portfolio Holder can decide under the 
Scheme of Delegation where there has been no objection from 
any Member of the relevant PDS Committee. 

All these categories of decision will be subject to the Portfolio 
Holder circulating his proposed decision to all Members in 
advance by email as a “minded to” decision; any Member may 
request that a matter be referred to the relevant PDS Committee 
before a decision is taken.   
 
 

(C) Area Committees 
 

3.9 Different types of area committee were considered. Members did not 
support a large scale devolution to area committees as had been tried in 
Tower Hamlets, but they did consider that allowing some more local decision 
making at ward level on certain issues, such as local environmental schemes, 
and possibly local budgets, might be useful. 
 
3.10  Area committees for planning were proposed, as these were common 
elsewhere and could allow the local differences, for example urban and rural, 
to be recognised. Some Members felt that there were advantages in terms of 
better local knowledge and making it easier for committee members to visit 
application sites as they would be local, rather than borough-wide.  
 
3.11 However, most Members felt that area planning committees could lead to 
more subjective and inconsistent planning decisions, and could potentially 
lead to delays in determining applications. There was concern that Members 
should not determine applications in their own wards and that area 
committees would be more parochial and self-interested. However, it was also 
suggested that committees could still be local, but with members not being 
allowed to determine cases in their own wards.   
 

Recommendation 3:   
The Working Group reports that there are mixed views on the 
issue of Area Planning Committees and makes no 
recommendation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



13 

(D) Enhancing the Role of Full Council Meetings  
 
3.12 Most Members were in favour of enhancing the role of full Council 
meetings, although one member suggested that it was a mistake to try and 
make any meeting more interesting. Various suggestions were made, and the 
Working Group proposed a number of changes set out in recommendations 4 
to 11.  
 
3.13 The Working Group supported encouraging more themed debates at full 
Council with a duty for the Executive to respond to policy proposals. The 
referral by the Executive to full Council of the Biggin Hill application was cited 
as an example of a Council meeting which produced real debate and 
involvement by all Members of the Council.  The Executive should also be 
able to refer major matters to full Council before taking important decisions.  

 
Recommendation 4:  
That either the Leader or 9 Members of one recognised political 
group, or 5 Members across two political groups, be permitted to 
initiate a debate on any matter of local importance before full 
Council, prior to an Executive decision being taken. 

 
3.14 The Working Group supported a proposal that the policy framework and 
financial thresholds be reviewed. One possibility was a cap on the monetary 
value of decisions taken by the Executive at, possibly, £5m (although full 
Council currently had to decide on supplementary estimates above £1m, there 
was no cap on Executive decisions taken within existing budgets.) This 
needed to be considered in more detail so the Working Group proposes that 
officers report back in the spring of 2013 so that any changes can be 
implemented in time for the next Council year. 
 

Recommendation 5:  
That the Director of Resources and Finance Director be instructed 
to undertake work to review the policy framework and financial 
thresholds for Council decision making, so that any changes may 
be implemented after the Annual Meeting in 2013. 

 
3.15 The Working Group agreed that major planning applications should be 
decided by full Council on the recommendation of Development Control 
Committee – it was suggested in addition that 20 Members could request an 
application to go to Council. 
 

Recommendation 6:  
That Council should be the appropriate authority to consider 
major planning applications on the recommendation of the 
Development Control Committee or at the request of twenty 
Members of the Council. 

 
3.16 The Council had established a Petition Scheme as required by the Local 
Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. Section 46 
of the Localism Act removed the duty to have a petition scheme. An annual 

Page 63



14 

report on the operation of the Petition Scheme had been considered by the 
General Purposes and Licensing Committee, which had referred a number of 
issues to this Working Group for consideration, including thresholds, 
timescales and requirements for receiving e-petitions. The Working Group 
considered that it was important to keep ward Members informed about 
petitions, but did not see any particular need to change the scheme except to 
withdraw the Council’s own e-petition facility, which had only been used once 
in two years and was no longer a statutory requirement.  

 
Recommendation 7: 
The Council’s e-petition facility be removed but the Petition 
Scheme otherwise continue un-amended. 

 
3.17 The Working Group considered that allowing supplementary questions 
from Members on replies to public or other members’ questions would be 
useful. It was recognised that this could cause time pressure on occasion, but 
it was considered that an extension of the time available could be allowed at 
the discretion of the chairman if necessary. 
 

Recommendation 8: 
The scheme of public and Member questions be amended to allow 
supplementary questions on replies from members of the Council. 
The timing should remain at 30 minutes, subject to the Mayor’s 
discretion to extend the time.  

 
3.18 The Council’s standing orders did permit recording of meetings, but only 
with the specific consent of the meeting. Although some Members were happy 
to allow recordings to be made of meetings, other Members commented that 
there was a danger that debates would be less open, it was difficult to know 
who was speaking from a recording, and that the public were free to attend 
most meetings if they were interested. It was suggested that the Resources 
Portfolio Holder should investigate whether better technology could be 
provided in the committee rooms to allow transmission of pictures as well as 
sound to overflow rooms.  
 
3.19 Under the new Executive regulations local authorities were obliged to 
provide reasonable facilities for the public, as well as journalists, to report on 
meetings, and a Government press release suggested that this would assist 
new social media reporting including blogging, tweeting and hyper-local news 
forums. However, there was an apparent contradiction in that there was also 
no requirement to allow the taking of pictures or the recording of meetings. 
 
3.20 The reasons for Members not wanting to allow recordings were 
concerned with fears about inhibiting free and open debate and particular 
statements being taken out of context or misused against the Council or 
particular Councillors. Members accepted that it was now harder to prevent 
discreet recording by members of the public and this was an issue now being 
addressed in the courts system. Most Members of the Working Group were 
prepared to allow recordings, including video, to be made by the public, 
provided that the meeting could require them to be stopped if necessary and 

Page 64



15 

that there were notices to make it clear that recordings should not be 
misused. 
 
3.21 Members discussed whether the Council should be providing video 
recordings of meetings. The current pa/microphone system could be extended 
to allow video recording and internet streaming, and camera technology had 
advanced with fixed point cameras able to follow individual speakers. The 
exact costs had not been established, but most Members felt that the Council 
could not justify expenditure on this, except for conveying pictures to 
accompany sound to overflow rooms when the Council Chamber was full.    

 
Recommendation 9: 
The prohibition on recording of meetings by members of the 
public be removed, subject to suitable disclaimers and a right for 
the meeting to demand that recording be stopped. 

 
Recommendation 10: 
Video cameras should be provided in the Council Chamber to 
allow the provision of vision as well as sound for overflow rooms. 

 
Recommendation 11: 
Master recordings be made of full Council meetings. 

 
 
(E) Councillors’ IT  
 
3.22 Wi-fi had been installed for all the committee rooms, allowing tablet 
devices to be used at meetings, and was now in use. A pilot was already 
being carried out with certain Members using i-pads for meetings with a view 
to providing all members with tablets in 2014. This would enable provision of 
paper agendas to cease. The Working Group felt that tablets should be 
provided now to those Members who were prepared to forgo paper agendas. 
It was also intended that all Members should move towards having a Council 
mobile phone rather than a fixed line for Council business. However, some 
Councillors experienced problems with mobile reception in their areas.      
 
3.23 Other uses of technology were discussed. Members were interested in 
the use of teleconferencing and skype for meetings (it was suggested that 
skype worked well for 1:1 meetings, but pictures could prove a distraction in 
larger meetings.) These facilities were already available. It was noted that wi-fi 
was good for business, and there were opportunities for developing income 
from wireless equipment being installed on street lights and other street 
furniture. It was also suggested that pictures of application sites could be 
projected during planning meetings.  
 

Recommendation 12: 
Further work should be undertaken by the New Technology  
Working Group to examine how Councillors can use new 
technology more effectively to achieve economies and efficiency 

Page 65



16 

as part of a wider assessment of Member support, examples 
being: 

 
(12.1) Encouraging a move from Council-financed fixed line 
phones and broadband across to mobile phones and use of 
Councillors’ own broadband; 
 
(12.2) Trialling hand held/tablet devices as an alternative to 
hard-copy deliveries and extending the use of team sites 
(similar to that used to support this review) to make 
background portfolio information available on an on-going 
basis to Councillors rather than providing this only in “for 
information” agenda reports; and 
 
(12.3) Enhanced presentation facilities to support public 
access to Council meetings, such as better hearing loops in 
Civic Centre rooms. 
 

Recommendation 13:  
Members elected before 2010 should be encouraged to switch 
away from Council provided landlines to mobile phones. 
 
Recommendation 14:  
Members should be allowed a monthly allowance for using their 
personal mobile phones rather than Council supplied equipment 
for Council business. 
 
Recommendation 15: 
Tablet computers should be provided to all Members from 2014 
and paper delivery stopped. 
 
Recommendation 16: 
Tablet computers should be provided on request for those 
Members prepared to forgo printed agenda papers. 
 
Recommendation 17: 
Teleconferencing, skype and similar new technology approaches 
are endorsed for use at informal meetings wherever practical for 
those Members who are unable to be present and investigations 
be made into the legal issues for their use for more formal 
meetings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



17 

(F)  Freedom of Information Requests  
 
3.24 The Working Group discussed the increasing numbers of Freedom of 
Information (FoI) requests being received. An e-form had now been 
introduced to channel requests to the right departments and officers were 
working on frequently asked questions (FAQ’s.) The Council could only 
charge for providing answers when it would take 18 hours or more to provide 
an answer – this was up to about £750 in staff time and therefore opportunity 
cost.  Members suggested publishing all answers so that people could be 
directed to answers that had already been published 
 

Recommendation 18:  
All Freedom of Information questions and answers should be 
made available via the Council’s website. 

 
 
(G) Councillor Numbers 
 
3.25 The Working Group considered the process for reducing Councillor 
numbers through a review by the Boundary Commission for England. Any 
changes would have to be made at election time, and it was accepted that it 
was now too late to be seeking changes for 2014. Members felt that it was 
worth carrying out further work with a view to securing changes for 2018.   
 

Recommendation 19:  
Work be initiated to secure a review of Councillor numbers in time 
for the 2018 election. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 8

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 70

This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26TH SEPTEMBER 2012 (EXCLUDING EXEMPT ITEMS) AND MATTERS ARISING
	5 LOCALISED PAY AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE
	GPL 231012 Localised Pay Conditions Appendix 1
	GPL 231012 Localised Pay Conditions Appendix 2
	GPL 231012 Localised Pay Conditions Appendix 3

	6 REPORT OF THE CONSTITUTION IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP
	8 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26TH SEPTEMBER 2012

